
BARTRAM SPRINGS 
 Community Development District 

 
March 11, 2024 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Bartram Springs  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website: www.BartramSpringsCDD.com 
   
 
 
March 4, 2024 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Bartram Springs Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Meeting of Bartram Springs Community Development District is scheduled for 
Monday, March 11, 2024 at 8:30 a.m. at the Bartram Springs Club Amenity Center, 
14530 Cherry Lake Drive, Jacksonville, Florida.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 
  
 
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments (regarding agenda items listed below) 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the February 7, 2024 Meeting 
 
 IV. VerdeGo Update 
 
 V. Consideration of Amenity Athletics Plan to Operate Spring Soccer 
 
 VI. Staffing Transition Update  
 
 VII. Consideration of Agreements 
  A. VerdeGo Agreement for Landscape Maintenance Services 
 
  B. GMS for On-Site Staffing for Amenities & Operations Management 

Services 
 
 VIII. Ratification of Agreements 
  A. Champion Swim School 
 
  B. Barracudas Swim Team 

http://www.bartramspringscdd.com/


 
  C. Matthews Design for Engineering Services  
  
 IX. Consideration of Resolution 2024-04, Designation of Officers 
 
 X. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
   
  B. Engineer  
 
  C. District Manager  
   1. 2024 General Elections 
 
   2. Discussion of Fiscal Year 2024 Meeting Schedule Revisions 
 
   3. Scheduling of March Workshop for Long-Range Planning of Athletic 

Programming 
 
  D. Amenity Management & Field Operations 
   1. Vesta Report (outgoing) 
 
   2. GMS Report (incoming) 
  
  XI. Supervisor’s Request and Audience Comments 
 
 XII. Financial Statements 
  A. Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2024 and Statement of Revenue & 

Expenditures for the Period Ending January 31, 2024 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Approval of Check Register 
  
 XIII. Next Scheduled Meeting – April 8, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. @ Bartram Springs Club 

Amenity Center 
 
 XIV. Adjournment 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
BARTRAM SPRINGS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Bartram Springs Community 

Development District was held Wednesday, February 7, 2024 at 6:05 p.m. at the Bartram Springs 

Club Amenity Center, 14530 Cherry Lake Drive, Jacksonville, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Andrew Walden Chairman 
 Derri Lassiter Young Vice Chairperson 
 Stephanie McKinney Supervisor 
 Taner Nierengarten Supervisor 
 Lacy Reynolds Supervisor 
 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel 
 Sue O’Lear Bartram Club Manager 
 Stephanie Taylor Vesta Assistant Manager  
 Jay King Vesta 
 Winslow Wheeler Operations Manager 
 Darrin Mossing GMS 
 Alison Mossing GMS 
 Rich Whetsel GMS 
 Jay Soriano  GMS 
 Terry Glynn GMS 
 Jerry Lambert GMS 
 Roy Deary Vesta  
 David Surface Vesta 
 Robert Beladi Koehn Outdoor 
 Billy Genovese  VerdeGo 
 Blake Dougherty  Yellowstone 
 Stacy Montoya The Greenery 
 Chris Charbonneau  Brightview 
 Fred Atwood Vesta 
 Paul Lukert VerdeGo 
 Bryan Wackles  VerdeGo 
 Sean Smith  Vesta 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

2 

 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs 

Community Development District Special Board of Supervisors meeting.  

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll. Five Supervisors 

were in attendance constituting a quorum. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 Mr. Oliver opened the audience comment period. Hearing no comments, the next item 

followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Scoring of Proposals for Landscape & 
Irrigation Maintenance Services 

 Mr. Oliver stated that they had seven excellent proposals that were received from landscape 

companies for the landscape and irrigation maintenance services. He explained that they started 

the process in December, and they had an initial date to turn in proposals in early January. He 

further explained that they went through a series of different addendums, and they were based on 

the communications between the landscape company and the District in terms of additional 

requests for information regarding the landscape process. The Board previewed the proposals at 

the meeting on January 22, 2024 and subsequently did preliminary scoring individually. He asked 

the Board members to read their total scores for each of the companies. Mr. Nierengarten’s scores 

were Brightview Landscape Services 76, Duval Landscape 81, Koehn Outdoor 73, The Greenery, 

Inc. 72, Tree Amigos Outdoor Services 74, VerdeGo 100, and Yellowstone 68. Ms. McKinney’s 

scores were Brightview Landscape Services 97, Duval Landscape 71, Koehn Outdoor 70, The 

Greenery, Inc. 72, Tree Amigos Outdoor Services 52, VerdeGo 100, and Yellowstone 69. Mr. 

Walden thanked everyone for coming to this meeting. Mr. Walden’s scores were Brightview 

Landscape Services 87.21, Duval Landscape 89.6, Koehn Outdoor 87, The Greenery, Inc. 92, Tree 

Amigos Outdoor Services 85, VerdeGo 100, and Yellowstone 88. Ms. Young’s scores were 

Brightview Landscape Services 87.21, Duval Landscape 89.6, Koehn Outdoor 77.18, The 

Greenery, Inc. 87.31, Tree Amigos Outdoor Services 85.58, VerdeGo 100, and Yellowstone 93.82. 

Ms. Reynolds thanked all the landscape companies for their proposals. Ms. Reynolds scores were 

Brightview Landscape Services 84.21, Duval Landscape 74.6, Koehn Outdoor 78.18, The 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

3 

Greenery, Inc. 86.31, Tree Amigos Outdoor Services 73.58, VerdeGo 91, and Yellowstone 93.82. 

Mr. Walden explained that on the first sheet he read, he forgot to add a column, and the second 

sheet has the correct one. Mr. Oliver totaled all the scores. After totaling the scores, he read the 

scores with the highest score going to VerdeGo with 491 points and the second highest is 

Brightview with 431 points. He continued reading the scores of the other proposals in no specific 

order, Yellowstone had 413 points, The Greenery, Inc. had 410 points, Duval Landscape had 422 

points, Tree Amigos Outdoor Services had 370, and Koehn Outdoor had 385. Mr. Oliver listed the 

rankings in order, VerdeGo ranked #1, Brightview ranked #2, Duval Landscape ranked #3, 

Yellowstone ranked #4, The Greenery, Inc. ranked #5, Koehn Outdoor ranked #6, and Tree 

Amigos Outdoor Services ranked #7.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Walden, seconded by Ms. Young, with all in 
favor, Adopting the Ranking and Directing Staff to Enter into an 
Agreement with VerdeGo, was approved. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for On-Site 
Staffing for Amenities & Operation 
Management Services 

 Mr. Oliver explained that the informal RFP resulted in two proposals from Vesta and GMS. 

Each company had the opportunity to present their proposals to the Board of Supervisors. GMS 

presented their proposal to the Board first. 

 Mr. Darrin Mossing, the President and Founder of the GMS Organization, thanked the 

Board of Supervisors for allowing them to be there to present their qualifications to hopefully have 

the privilege of operating and maintaining their beautiful facility. He stated that they were excited 

to be there. In GMS’s presentation, there was an introduction of the GMS staff present in this 

meeting, a history provided of the GMS Organization and their relationship with Bartram Springs, 

GMS company information was provided, a presentation of charts comparing the two fees that 

were proposed for the RFP, the alternatives and how it relates to their budget, GMS’s staff spoke 

specifically to the athletic field as well as some of their programming, and the Amenity Manager 

from Oakleaf Plantation spoke about their operations.  

Mr. Walden asked about the access cards and how Mr. Soriano and their staff differentiates 

residents and non-residents on the soccer field because of the two different entities. Mr. Soriano 

explained that the residents on each side were able to go back and forth. They have the same card. 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

4 

Mr. Walden asked if Mr. Soriano had been on their soccer field. Mr. Soriano responded that he 

had not. Ms. Young asked GMS if they would be the ones staffed in their location. The response 

was yes, Terry Glynn and Richard Whetsel would be. Mr. Soriano explained that there would be 

times where they would see any of the GMS staff members helping out. Ms. Young also asked if 

GMS supplies the vehicles for their staff. The response was yes, they have multiple trucks, ATVs, 

golf cart, etc. Ms. Young asked if their staff would have to utilize their own personal vehicles. The 

response was no. Mr. Nierengarten asked how much of their plan involves Supervisor involvement 

and how much of that is handling it at the GMS level. Mr. Soriano responded that the Board of 

Supervisors would direct that, and GMS would be involved with each of them every step of the 

way and they will be available at all times. Mr. Mossing explained that statutorily the Board of 

Supervisors hires the District Manager to handle all day-to-day operations of the District and 

GMS’s preference would be that they handle all of the day-to-day operations, and the Board was 

there to govern the District. He explained that if GMS feels like the Board has to be involved in 

their job, then GMS isn’t doing their job. He stated that hopefully the Board doesn’t need to be 

involved in their job unless the Board has a passion and desire to do it. Ms. Young agreed with 

Mr. Mossing’s statement and was so glad he made that comment. She explained that the 

management company has the duty to inspect the property and the Board members should not have 

to report to the management company on safety as well as other concerns. Mr. Mossing stated that 

safety was very important, and it was in their own personal interest to take safety very seriously 

and make sure those areas are taken care of.  

Ms. Mossing discussed GMS’s approach to special events, summer camp, and lifestyle 

planning. She noted that the main point she wanted to get through today was that GMS does not 

utilize a revenue share profit. She explained that for special events, if the District decides to charge 

a fee for special events, GMS does not take any portion of the fee. The money goes entirely back 

into the general fund and back to the CDD and they do not take a portion of that revenue. She 

stated that the same concept goes for the summer camp and fitness classes. She noted that they 

have the ability to run summer camp and have run summer camps in the past. The entire fee to run 

summer camp goes back to the District and they do not take a cut of their fee. The District will pay 

for their staffing and supplies for the summer camp. She added that GMS prefers to utilize outside 

venders and independent contractors that are licensed and insured to come in and put on the fitness 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

5 

class programs in the District. Again, the fee goes to the fitness instructor with a percentage going 

to the CDD. GMS doesn’t take a cut of any of the fitness classes. 

Ms. Reynolds noted that her first observation was that Mr. Nelson’s, the chief operating 

officer, biography was missing from the proposal. Mr. Mossing explained that they focused on the 

people that are in the industry. Mr. Nelson covers all their offices all over the state. He pointed out 

that Mr. Nelson prepared this proposal. Ms. Reynolds noted that as a follow up, they would like 

Mr. Nelson’s biography. Mr. Mossing responded absolutely. Ms. Reynold’s second observation 

was that GMS may be missing an accountant. She noted that it was critically important in this 

industry that GMS and Vesta have an accounting department or somebody who is a CPA to look 

at the numbers. She recommended that they should have an accountant who only deals with the 

math, who can be accurate with numbers, who is very proficient in excel, and who does not rely 

on Board of Supervisors to put together an excel spreadsheet. She pointed out that she can 

appreciate Mr. Mossing’s background as an accountant, but she felt that was what was missing 

from the chart. Mr. Mossing responded that he would send their organizational chart on the 

corporate side. He noted that their CFO is a CPA, and they have three other CPAs in their industry 

in their south Florida office. He pointed out that two of their accountants are CPAs and one of 

those accountants was a former Grau & Associates employee. He explained that Grau & Associates 

was one of their top auditing firms in their industry and this accountant worked 20 years for Grau 

& Associates. Ms. Reynolds responded that she had seen other firms bring that to the table, and 

she was very sad when they got two proposals and neither proposal had an accountant in their 

family companies. Mr. Mossing responded that he appreciates that feedback because when they 

look at the complexities and the material information, it’s draining to put all that information 

together and try to comply with meeting all the requirements. Mr. Walden stated that moving 

forward, that is a key element. Ms. Reynolds noted that her third observation was the mention of 

the scope of the RFP. She explained that the scope should have come to the Supervisors before it 

went out. She pointed out that there were some important questions that were not asked. She asked 

if it came to a staffing shortage, do they borrow from other properties. She also asked what their 

backup plan was in the event that someone can’t be there after hours or there is not a manager that 

they can reach. Ms. Mossing responded that she would be there. She also stated that they have 

additional staff to fill in that is not already assigned to another District. Ms. Reynolds noted that 

things happen, and she wanted to make sure that there is a plan for that because she didn’t find that 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

6 

plan in the proposal. Mr. Mossing explained that GMS has a very high retention rate of their 

employees. He further explained that they appreciate their staff and do the best they can to take 

care of them. He noted that they pay 100% to the employee premium. Ms. Reynolds noted that 

paying 100% to the employee premium is very nice of Mr. Mossing as an employer and she 

commends him for that. She stated that benefits are always important and is how they attract and 

retain employees. She stated that they want to make sure that the staff there will be happy working 

for whatever company they decide. She asked if Mr. Mossing contributes anything to the family 

or dependent. Mr. Mossing responded that they did not and explained that they pay 100% of the 

individual, but not the dependent. Ms. Reynolds noted that they had reached out to AgrowPro. She 

explained to GMS that there was an aeriation done on the fields last year and it was unsuccessful, 

and they all recognize the need to make those fields better. She stated that it was good to know 

that GMS works with different vendors that they are already consulting and working with. Ms. 

Reynolds asked Mr. Mossing’s professional opinion on using a cost-plus contract with a CDD this 

size and if they think they could lose a significant amount of money. Mr. Mossing explained that 

he would put the right person in the position even if it cost him money. He further explained that 

he would invest in the community. Mr. Oliver explained that he was not a fan of the cost-plus 

contract, but he wasn’t saying that it doesn’t work in some situations. Mr. Walden asked Ms. 

Mossing what they do for veterans. Ms. Mossing explained that they often decorate the facilities 

for veterans. It was asked for Mr. Mossing to explain how the transition process would work. Mr. 

Mossing explained that they have some insight and are naturally familiar with Bartram Spring’s 

facility. Rich Whetsel, the Operations Manager, is very familiar with this property. Mr. Mossing 

further explained that the first thing that comes to mind is immediately putting into action the 

staffing for the lifeguard, which is priority with Spring Break coming up. He noted that most of 

the other positions are covered. He added that if there was somebody from Vesta that the Board 

really thought was good, they would absolutely entertain an interview with them and consider 

them. He explained that their staffing was in place. They have done this many times. He also stated 

that GMS knows their budget and their operations; they will just get things organized. He noted 

that they will be communicating with Vesta on a pretty regular basis on when their contracts up, 

when their last day will be, and on any open items. He noted that they will be transparent in 

communications. Ms. Mossing added that they would schedule a transition meeting and get all the 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

7 

important information from Vesta. She assured the Board that they have done five seamless 

transitions in the last year, and they are very comfortable with transitioning. 

Ms. Young asked GMS to explain the computer systems and if the computer systems in 

place now onsite were owned by Vesta or will GMS have their own computer systems. Ms. 

Mossing explained that they would have to figure out whether it is a District computer or a Vesta 

computer. If it’s a Vesta computer, they would purchase a new computer and bring it to their site 

and upload all the new programs and transition everything. Ms. Young asked if they had ever had 

any issues with the transition from one company to another where the other company was not 

cooperating. Ms. Mossing responded yes; they have run into that quite a bit. She explained that 

they fill in the gaps. They get the crucial information and fill in the gaps. She noted that they are 

comfortable with this process and know what they need to get done. After all questions were 

answered and discussed, GMS concluded their presentation. The Board thanked GMS for their 

presentation. 

At this time, Vesta presented their proposal to the Board. Ms. O’Lear thanked the Board 

for the opportunity to talk with them tonight. She stated that Vesta is a large organization, they 

have a large corporate structure, and they are a good company. She explained that they have a very 

long history of about 20 years being part of the Bartram Springs community, and they want to 

continue their partnership as long as they would have them. She expressed that this exercise was 

great and was an awesome opportunity to step back and make sure they are providing the level of 

service and the value to all the Board members and their neighbors in the community. She noted 

that the most compelling thing that Vesta has in bringing their proposal to life was their team. She 

explained that they are truly an organization that has high quality, experienced and diverse 

individuals with the very background that can all come together and continue to meet the needs of 

their community for years and years to come. There was an introduction of the Vesta staff present 

in this meeting. After the introduction of Vesta’s staff, Ms. O’Lear and Vesta staff discussed the 

value that Vesta can bring to the Bartram Springs community, the different ways they will do that, 

resident and employee satisfaction, quality assurance and their processes, the Board’s engagement 

and satisfaction, their working partnership moving forward, how they would continue to fill 

residents satisfaction, the future of what the staffing model looks like, they were presented with 

choices so the Board can make a sound decision based on what the Board thinks best fits the needs 

of the community, and they discussed the future in terms of their pricing models where Vesta 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

8 

offered the Board options so the Board can make a decision. She added that the Board didn’t 

necessarily have to go with the way it’s always been, and they could decide on what they think 

best fits the needs of the community. Mr. King explained the cost-plus contract to the Board as 

well. 

Ms. Young noted concern about Vesta’s turnover. She explained that since she had been 

on the Board, Vesta’s employee, Jane, had been there for quite some time. She further explained 

that she felt that Jane had been overlooked and has not evolved. Ms. Young felt that Jane should 

be in some type of management position, but she is not. She pointed out that Mr. Wheeler would 

be going to another community and there had not been much said about him leaving. She added 

that personally she thought Mr. Wheeler was an asset to the community. She stated that she knew 

there were some mistakes along the way, but whatever those mistakes were, it would be a reflection 

upon whoever the boss is. She asked about the new operations manager. Ms. O’Lear explained 

that Mr. Atwood has great experience. She pointed out that it had been amazing to have a fresh set 

of eyes come in and help them see some things that they can immediately impact and improve. 

She also explained that Jane had been with Vesta since 2016 and was an asset to their team. She 

noted that she would not discuss Jane’s personal situation, but she has restrictions on her 

employment, how many hours she can work and how much she can earn. She added that through 

all of that, they have continued to keep her challenged, developing and engaged in a lot of ways 

outside of her title. She stated that Jane functions like an office manager for them and they try to 

max out her development, income, responsibility and job satisfaction any way they can. She 

expressed that if there was anyone who thought that other Vesta properties doesn’t come looking 

for her to come and work there, they would be mistaken. She noted that Jane was committed there 

right now. She stated that it wasn’t a checkmark on Vesta that Jane has stayed in her position this 

long because she has evolved it, developed it, taken on more responsibility, was the background 

of Vesta and was the most resident facing person on their management team. She added that she 

appreciated everything Jane does for Vesta. She also stated that she didn’t think that Mr. Wheelers 

transition was a result of any mistakes regardless of whose fault they were. Ms. Young again noted 

her concern with the turnover. She noted that Ms. Taylor was doing an awesome job. She thanked 

Mr. King for clearing up some things regarding the accounting. She also noted that Mr. King 

coming in in that position as a resident in their neighborhood and already being on this Board, was 

a conflict of interest because he lives in the community and if he wanted to come to the meeting 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

9 

as a resident, he can’t because of the position that he is in. She added that she was shocked when 

she noticed the turnover for him to be over there versus Dan. She stated that to her, in her opinion, 

it was a conflict of interest. She loved that he was with the company, but she has never liked the 

fact that he is sitting in the position that he is in right now because he could not separate resident 

versus his job with Vesta. Mr. King responded that Ms. Young’s noted concern was fair, but he 

felt that it was an advantage for him to be there as a resident because he is there all the time both 

in an official compacity as well as using the gym, swimming, etc. and he can hear from his 

neighbors and get the feedback and is very accessible in that sense. He argued that they get a better 

product from him because he is a resident of their community. He pointed out that at the end of 

the day, he wants to do what is right not only from an ethical standpoint, but he wants to direct all 

his neighbors and friends who use the facility. He appreciated the perspective, but he wanted to 

them to know his approach to it, and he sees it as a positive. 

Ms. Young noted multiple issues over the past few years regarding the revenue share, 

accounting, etc. She pointed out that they had come forward and answered a lot of questions for 

them and had to prepare a lot of documents for them. She asked Vesta how they saw those issues 

getting better as they move along. Mr. King responded that all the third-party vendors are 

contracted directly to the Board instead of coming through Vesta. He explained that Vesta was still 

providing full 10% revenue share and then some for the programs that they provide, which is the 

summer camp and athletics. He stated that it was always a partnership, and they are always happy 

to serve to the pleasure of the Board. In terms of their arrangement between Vesta and the Board, 

they are always open. 

Ms. Reynolds noted her appreciation for Vesta’s proposal presentation. In saying that, the 

presentation brought up more questions for herself than answers. Her first question to Vesta related 

to transparency and the transparent pricing. She pointed out that she noticed today that in 2011, 

there was something called amenities leadership and she wasn’t sure if it was the intention for it 

to be the same as amenities sports group or if it is the same. Mr. King responded that was before 

his time. Mr. Deary explained that it was a company he owned and operated and was the reason 

he started the swim team. He further explained that they specialize in serving CDDs. He was called 

to see if he was interested in joining Vesta and his company was acquired by Vesta. He stated that 

he ran their amenities division for a number of years, which was what little biography was meant 

to describe. They have been focusing on CDDs since 1997 and they joined Vesta in 2011. Ms. 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

10 

Reynolds asked about some differences regarding events and financials when comparing Bartram 

Springs CDD to other Districts similar to this District. Mr. King responded that every District is 

different, and each community has a different personality. He noted that Vesta prides themselves 

in adjusting to those differences. He explained that it was on Vesta to make the most of the money 

and the instruction that the Board gives them. Ms. Reynolds noted that a lot of the Districts are 

missing in the contract amount and she always feels like it’s good to compare notes. She expressed 

that it was important to know what their fellow communities are charging, what they are getting 

for their service and what they are getting out of it. She also noted that she noticed that on page 46 

that Vesta did not put Bartram Springs in the graph. She pointed out that there was no revenue 

sharing included in the cost nor an asterisk with the other communities of similar size and how 

much they pay. Mr. King clarified that what they see on page 46 and 47 was just their contract 

services fees and it didn’t show all the money that flows through those. He explained that for the 

most part, anywhere they do programming, they have 10% revenue share. Ms. Reynolds 

recommended that Vesta have an accountant on staff that can have these numbers and present them 

in a fair way. She explained that the Board of Supervisors wants to be transparent with the residents 

as far as the amount of money Vesta makes from Bartram Springs, which was missing from the 

proposal. She further explained that it was ok because they as a Board knew how much Vesta made 

last year, but it wasn’t in the proposal. She stated that if Vesta was hanging their hat on 

transparency in a formal RFP process, it should be in the proposal. Mr. King asked if Ms. Reynolds 

wanted to know Vesta’s profitability in each location. Ms. Reynolds responded that it was 

important to note if Vesta has a program revenue share at Heritage Landing, Bartram Springs and 

other Vesta properties. Mr. King responded that they do have revenue shares at all their properties 

with programs. Ms. Reynolds stated that was fair, but they were missing numbers from their 

contract amount on page 44 and 45 and this is an important part of the contract. She stated that the 

other part of the contract where there is missing amounts from the RFP totals is for the cleaning 

and pool chemicals. She explained that other than those concerns, she feels like Vesta advocates 

for them as Board of Supervisors and she was very happy with what has been put out in the RFP. 

Ms. Reynolds noted another concern was the cost-plus contract. She asked what the 

advantages and the disadvantages were. Mr. King explained that the advantages were that they 

would be getting monthly reporting on exactly what they are spending on all things onsite in terms 

of labor, which is the vast majority of their expenses. He also noted that they would get flexibility 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

11 

to change staffing and hours and they get their reporting on how they are doing relative to their 

expense and budget. He noted that the only negative was the concern with a fixed rate, but he noted 

some solutions to this. He stated that they were happy to do either a closed contract or cost-plus 

contract. In saying that, he recommended to the Board of Supervisors the cost-plus contract 

because it facilitates more transparency and it’s the least expensive option. 

Mr. Nierengarten asked what kind of benefits Vesta offers to their employees. He noted 

that there was a page in the RFP that details employee benefits. He explained that they offer 401K, 

and they try to pay their employees the best they can given the market conditions. He added that 

they try to facilitate a culture. He noted that he took pride in Vesta not experiencing much turnover. 

Ms. Young asked if Vesta pays 100% of the employee health. Mr. King responded that it has 

evolved over time. It was explained that they switched providers this year and it was 90% coverage 

by Vesta and 10% by the employee individual. Ms. Young asked Vesta what their turnover ratio 

was. The response was that they have 1,300 employees, but it’s hard to gage that because 300 of 

those employees are seasonal employees. It was explained that if they go off the 1,000 full-time 

employees across the state, they have anywhere from 10% turnover ratio up to 40%. 

Ms. Reynold’s asked if there was a reason that someone would not want to put in an RFP 

on their property in Bartram Springs. It was explained that there was not a lot of companies in this 

on the amenity side of the business. It was noted that this was a challenging business.  

Mr. Walden noted kudos to the entire team. He also thanked Mr. Surface for coming out 

and he understands his position. He stated that they have highs and lows. He explained that it was 

sad to see on this particular day during an RFP process that they are losing continuity. He stated 

that the Board’s dues and responsibility is the safety and to protect the property. He noted that if 

Vesta messes up, it’s a reflection on the Board. He asked why they had Board members tasks to 

make sure things are done right. He stated that moving forward, if Vesta sustains the contract, he 

will personally ask each Board member to back off and let Vesta do what they are supposed to do. 

He pointed out that the only reason there was a task was because there was a flaw somewhere. 

With that said, he thanked Vesta for coming out and he appreciated everything and sustainability.  

At this time, Vesta stepped out of the room. The Board of Supervisors discussed the two 

proposal presentations. Ms. Young brought up a good point that was noted also by Ms. Reynolds 

that if they start out messy, they will end messy. She noted that her concern has always been the 

actions that Vesta has taken that could potentially allow them to end up being liable. She stated 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

12 

that GMS came in and laid it out. She explained that the things that they have been looking for are 

the things, in her personal opinion, that GMS is ready to provide. She pointed out that they have 

had a lot of mess ups with money and issues with Vesta throughout the time that she has been on 

this Board. She noted that they need to look carefully at what has been done. She also noted that 

what the management company does is a reflection on the Board. Ms. Reynolds preferred that they 

score each of them. She noted that it was disappointing that they did not do a formal RFP. An 

annual contract was discussed. Ms. McKinney noted that Vesta has worked with them, worked on 

the changes that the Board requested and were very quick about it. She noted that some of their 

grievances were being handled and she didn’t think that it should reflect on Vesta necessarily. She 

thought it was one or two staff members that were not going to be a problem anymore. She noted 

that she thought they were voting this on a lot of promises from somebody as opposed to working 

with someone for a long time. After discussion, it was decided to accept GMS to be their new 

management company.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Walden, seconded by Ms. Young, with Mr. 
Walden, Mr. Nierengarten, Ms. Reynolds and Ms. Young in favor and 
Ms. McKinney opposed, the GMS Proposal for On-Site Staffing for 
Amenities & Operation Management Services, was approved 4-1. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests and Audience 
Comments 

 There being no comments, the next item followed.  

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – February 12, 2024 
at 6:00 p.m. @ Bartram Springs Club 
Amenity Center 

 Mr. Oliver stated the next meeting regular meeting will be on February 12, 2024 at 6:00 

p.m. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Walden, seconded by Ms. Young, with all in 
favor, the meeting adjourned. 



February 7, 2024 Bartram Springs Community Development District 

13 

 

 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



1 
 

LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT AND VERDEGO, LLC 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of ____________, 2024, by and 
between: 
 

BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
located in Duval County, Florida with a mailing address of 475 West Town Place, 
Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the “District”), and 
 
VERDEGO LLC, a Florida limited liability company, whose address is 3335 North 
State Street, Bunnell, Florida 32210 (the “Contractor”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District was established by rule of the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory 
Commission, for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining 
certain infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide landscape 
and irrigation maintenance services for certain lands within and around the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated 
herein by reference (the “Proposal”), and represents that it is qualified to serve as a landscape and 
irrigation maintenance contractor and provide such services to the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, 
it is agreed that the Contractor is hereby retained, authorized, and instructed by the District to 
perform in accordance with the following covenants and conditions, which both the District and 
the Contractor have agreed upon: 
 

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals stated above are true and correct and 
by this reference are incorporated by reference as a material part of this Agreement. 

 
2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 

 
A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional landscape and 

irrigation maintenance services within presently accepted standards.  Upon 
all parties executing this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the 
District with the specific services identified in this Agreement. 

 
B. While providing the services identified in this Agreement, the Contractor 

shall assign such staff as may be required, and such staff shall be responsible 



2 
 

for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all aspects to assure 
completion of the services. 
 

C. The Contractor shall provide the specific professional services as shown in 
Paragraph 3 of this Agreement. 

           
3. SCOPE OF LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The duties, 

obligations, and responsibilities of the Contractor are those described in the Scope of Services 
attached hereto as Exhibit B.  Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and 
methods by which its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the 
District.  
     

4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE.  The Contractor agrees, as an 
independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform or have performed such services as 
specified in this Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written 
work order by the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the 
Contractor.  All work shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable 
to the District and shall be in accordance with industry standards.  The performance of all services 
by the Contractor under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written 
instructions issued by the District. 
 
  A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this 

Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the 
proper provision of services to the District, such work or services shall be 
fully performed by the Contractor as if described and delineated in this 
Agreement. 

 
  B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of 

any work or services not included in Section 3 unless the District, through 
an authorized representative of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in 
writing, to perform such work. 

 
C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District’s 

representative with respect to the services to be performed under this 
Agreement.  The District’s representative shall have complete authority to 
transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define the District’s 
policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and 
systems pertinent to the Contractor’s services. 

 
(1) The District hereby designates the District Manager, or a 

representative of the District Manager, to act as its representative. 
 
   (2) The Contractor agrees to meet with the District’s representative no 

less than one (1) time per month to walk the property to discuss 
conditions, schedules, and items of concern regarding this 
Agreement. 



3 
 

 
  D. In the event that time is lost due to heavy rains (the “Rain Days”), the 

Contractor agrees to reschedule its employees and divide their time 
accordingly to complete all scheduled services during the time during the 
same week as any Rain Days.  The Contractor shall provide services on 
Saturdays if needed to make up Rain Days, but shall not provide services 
on Sundays. Contractor shall coordinate with the District Representatives 
to timely complete all such services.  

 
  E. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its 

residents, and landowners from damage.  Contractor agrees to repair any 
damage resulting from Contractor’s activities and work within twenty-four 
(24) hours.  

 
5. COMPENSATION; TERM.   

 
  A. The initial term of this Agreement shall be from __________, 2024 through 

_______________, 2025 (the “Initial Term”), with the option for four 
annual renewals thereafter in the amounts set forth on Exhibit A.  As 
compensation for services described in this Agreement, the District agrees 
to pay Contractor One Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand Nine Hundred 
Twenty-Five Dollars and Zero Cents ($195,925.00) for the Initial Term of 
the Agreement in monthly amounts of Sixteen Thousand Three Hundred 
Twenty Seven Dollars and Nine Cents ($16,327.09), unless terminated 
earlier in accordance with Section 13 below.  At the end of the Initial Term 
set forth above, this Agreement may be renewed for four (4) consecutive 
twelve (12) periods with compensation to be determined at each renewal 
period upon terms mutually agreeable to both parties. 

 
B. If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add additional 

lands to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to 
undertake such additional work or services.  Upon successful negotiations, 
the Parties shall agree in writing to an addendum, addenda, or change 
order(s) to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall be compensated for such 
agreed additional work or services based upon a payment amount 
acceptable to the Parties and agreed to in writing. 

 
Additional services such as mulching, mowing, irrigation, sod laying, 
remedial landscape, and the planting of annuals, can be provided by the 
Contractor.  However, no additional services shall be provided by the 
Contractor unless done at the direction of the District.  Fees for such 
additional services shall be as provided for in the attached Proposal or, if 
not identified, as negotiated between the District and the Contractor. 

   
C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment 

to the Contractor, that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers 



4 
 

be paid and require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial 
Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District by those subcontractors, 
material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor 
provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness.  Further, 
the District shall have the right to require, as a condition precedent to 
making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form satisfactory 
to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the 
District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations 
with regard to the  withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security 
payments, Workmen’s Compensation, Unemployment Compensation 
contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of employees. 

 
D. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting 

practices.  Further, the Contractor agrees to render monthly invoices to the 
District, in writing, which shall be delivered or mailed to the District by the 
fifth (5th) day of the next succeeding month.  These monthly invoices are 
due and payable within forty-five (45) days of receipt by the District.  Each 
monthly invoice will include such supporting information as the District 
may reasonably require the Contractor to provide. 

 
6. INSURANCE. 

 
A. The Contractor or any subcontractor performing the work described in this 

Agreement shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the 
following insurance: 

 
(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Florida. 
  
   (2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s 

legal liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property 
damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards: 

 
    (i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and 

property damage in connection with subcontractors’ 
operation. 

 
   (3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 

(one million dollars) per accident or disease. 
   
   (4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not 

less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for 
property damage, providing coverage for any accident arising out of 
or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or use by the 



5 
 

Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, 
or other equipment required to be licensed. 

 
B. The District, its staff, consultants, agents and supervisors shall be named as 

an additional insured.  The Contractor shall furnish the District with the 
Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement.  No 
certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any 
change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, 
as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written 
notice to the District.  Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable 
insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida, and 
such carrier shall have a Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII. 

 
C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required 

insurance, the District has the right (without any obligation to do so, 
however), to secure such required insurance in which event, the Contractor 
shall pay the cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon 
demand, all information that may be required in connection with the 
District’s obtaining the required insurance. 

 
7. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 

judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay 
awards, court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, 
attorney fees, and paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, 
or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered. 

 
B. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and 

its officers, agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or 
representatives from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, 
demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments 
against the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or otherwise, 
arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the Services to be 
performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in 
connection with this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, 
appellate, or settlement proceedings with respect thereto.  Additionally, 
nothing in this Agreement requires Contractor to indemnify the District for 
the District’s percentage of fault if the District is adjudged to be more than 
50% at fault for any claims against the District and Contractor as jointly 
liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify the District for any and 
all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the 
District, regardless whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 
50% at fault.  

 



6 
 

8. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  The Contractor shall keep, 
observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances.  If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) 
days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision 
thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the 
Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, 
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable 
to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) 
days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 
 

9. LIENS AND CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for all labor 
employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this Agreement.  The 
Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or mechanic’s liens and 
claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason of the Contractor’s 
performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately discharge any such claim 
or lien.  In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such claim or lien within three (3) 
business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition to any and all other remedies 
available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be effective immediately upon 
the giving notice of termination. 

 
10. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.  A default 

by either Party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in 
equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or 
specific performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or 
impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement. 

 
11. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the contrary 

notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions and 
agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 

 
12. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 

heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, except 
as expressly limited in this Agreement. 

 
13. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 

Agreement with or without cause by providing ninety (90) days written notice of termination to 
the District; provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure 



7 
 

any failure under this Agreement.  The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this 
Agreement immediately with cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. 
The District shall provide thirty (30) days written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any 
termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or 
services rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims 
or off-sets the District may have against the Contractor.   

 
14. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  All permits and licenses required by any governmental 

agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District.  All other permits or 
licenses necessary for the contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be obtained and paid 
for by the Contractor. 

 
15. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this Agreement 

without the prior written approval of the other. 
 
16. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this Agreement, 

the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither the Contractor nor employees 
of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or application 
of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or otherwise.  The 
Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or more of such laws 
with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance of this Agreement.  
The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, express or implied, 
on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent the District as an 
agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this Agreement. 

 
17. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this Agreement 

are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of 
the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
18. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either the District or the 

Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

 
19. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of 

this Agreement between the District and the Contractor relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

 
20. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 

Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the District 
and the Contractor. 

 
21. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 

the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District and the 
Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the Contractor 
have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument. 



8 
 

 
22. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 

Agreement (the "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 
      

A. If to the District:  Bartram Springs Community   
     Development District 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
World Golf Village 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092    

 Attn:  District Manager 
 

  With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 
     107 W. College Avenue 
     Tallahassee, Florida  32301 

      Attn: District Counsel 
 
 B. If to the Contractor:  VerdeGo, LLC 
      3335 North State Street 

Bunnell, Florida 32210  
Attn:       

     
a. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed 

received only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. 
(at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business 
day.  If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, 
Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as 
business days.  Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notice on 
behalf of the District and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be 
sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to 
which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and 
addressees set forth herein. 

 
23. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 

District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for 
the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this 
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, 
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole 
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 



9 
 

24. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions contained 
in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida.  Venue for any dispute arising out of this Agreement shall be in Duval County, Florida. 

 
25. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Contractor understands and agrees that all documents of any 

kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and, 
accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling 
such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor 
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is Jim Oliver (“Public 
Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by law, the 
Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 
2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public 
records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable time period at a cost 
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public 
records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, 
are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian 
of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all  public 
records in Contractor’ s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable  
requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When such public records are 
transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word 
or Adobe PDF formats.   

 
IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
CONTRACTOR’ S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 1-904-940-5850, 
JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM, AND 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, 
SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092. 

 
26. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 

of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 

 
27. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 

between the District and the Contractor as an arm's length transaction.  The District and the 
Contractor participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their 
respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this 
Agreement, the parties are each deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and 
any doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 

 



10 
 

28. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts 
together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Additionally, the Parties acknowledge 
and agree that the Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, which shall be considered 
as an original signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as an original 
signature. Without limitation, “electronic signature” shall include faxed versions of an original 
signature, electronically scanned and transmitted versions (e.g. via PDF) of an original signature, 
or signatures created in a digital format.  

 
29. E-VERIFY.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform all applicable provisions 

of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by Florida Statute, 
Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland Security’s E-
Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. The District 
may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief that the 
Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1), Florida Statutes.  By entering into this 
Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has terminated a contract with the 
Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately preceding 
the date of this Agreement.  

 
30. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES.   The Contractor agrees 

to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general in any 
investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant to such section and to incorporate in 
all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes. 

 
31. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES STATEMENT.   Contractor certifies it: (i) is not in 

violation of Section 287.135, Florida Statutes; (ii) is not on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List; (iii) is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List; (iv) does not have business operations in Cuba or Syria; (v) is not 
on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List; and (vi) is not participating in a boycott of 
Israel.  If the Contractor is found to have submitted a false statement with regards to the prior 
sentence, has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List, has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria, and/or 
has engaged in a boycott of Israel, the District may immediately terminate the Contract. 

 
[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



11 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement the day and year first written 
above. 
 
ATTEST:     BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
       
 
      VERDEGO, LLC 
 
 
_____________________________  By:________________________________ 
    
By:__________________________  Its:________________________________ 
 
 
Exhibit A: Proposal for Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance 
Exhibit B: Scope of Services 
 



12 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 



13 
 

 

 



14 
 

 

 



15 
 

 

 



16 
 

 



17 
 

 

 



18 
 

 

 



19 
 

 

 

 

  



20 
 

EXHIBIT B 

SCOPE OF SERVICES – LANDSCAPE 
Bartram Springs CDD 

 
 

PART 1 
GENERAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 

 
1) MOWING – All grass areas will be mowed on the following schedule; however, 
Bermuda grass will be mowed once a month November 1 - March 1 and such reduced 
schedule shall be reflected in Contractor's pricing:  

 
MARCH 1 – NOVEMBER 1 – Once a week  
NOVEMBER 1 – MARCH 1 – Once every two weeks  

 
This schedule estimates that there will be between 41 – 45 cuts annually based on standard growing 
periods in Florida, however, requires a minimum of 52 visits (weekly) to perform those duties, 
other than mowing, which cannot remain unattended for two weeks. (i.e., weed control, selective 
mowing, landscape detailing, debris clearing, etc.) Notwithstanding the above, at no time will the 
Bahia grass (ponds) be allowed to grow beyond a maximum height of four (4) to four and one half 
(4 ½) inches and Bermuda grass shall never be allowed to grow beyond a maximum height of two 
(2) inches. Each mowing should leave the Bahia grass at a height of three (3) to three and one half 
(3 1/2) inches and Bermuda at a height of one (1) to one and one half (1 ½) inches. St. Augustine 
shall never be allowed to grow beyond five and one half (5 ½) inches. Optimum height for 
Bermuda should be approximately one and one half (1 ½”) to encourage deeper root growth. 
Rotary Mowers are preferred for heights above one (1) inch. All blades shall be kept sharp at all 
times to provide a high-quality cut and to minimize disease. If the swales located throughout the 
property are filled with rainwater or are too soft to mow without leaving ruts from the mowers in 
the swales, contractor shall use line trimming to properly maintain the grasses. The district requires 
mowers to be equipped with a mulching type of deck. Clippings may be left on the lawn if no 
readily visible clumps remain on the grass surface thirty-six hours after mowing. Otherwise, large 
clumps of clippings will be collected and removed by the Contractor. In case of fungal disease 
outbreaks, the clippings will be collected until the disease is under control. The Contractor shall 
restore any noticeable damage caused by the Contractor’s mowing equipment within forty-eight 
hours from the time the damage is caused at his sole cost and expense. The contractor shall be 
responsible for training all its personnel in the technical aspects of the Bartram Springs Landscape 
Maintenance Program and general horticultural practices. This training will also include wetland 
species identification as it relates to lake banks & wetland areas. The Contractor shall be held 
responsible for all damage to wetlands, littoral shelves, mitigation areas and uplands due to 
mowing/fertilizing, etc. Weekend work is permitted, when necessary, upon prior approval.  
 

1A) POND MOWING - All ponds (32) identified as such on the overall Bartram Springs 
CDD Maintenance Exhibit/Plans shall be mowed incorporating the same mowing schedule 
as the common areas stated above. Each mowing shall leave the grass at a height of four 



21 
 

(4) to four and one half (4½) inches. Pond banks will be mowed and/or trimmed to water’s 
edge. Line trimming at water’s edge and line trimming of drainage structures shall occur 
every time the pond is mowed. Careful attention must be paid to mower height on pond 
banks so as not to scalp at the crest of the lake bank and increase the chances for pond bank 
erosion. Also, when line trimming to water’s edge, Contractor shall be extremely careful 
not to scalp at the water’s edge also increasing chances of pond bank erosion. Line 
trimming height shall be the same as mowing height (if not slightly higher). Contractor 
shall be careful to keep trimmings from entering water. Excessive clippings shall be hand 
removed. Mowers must blow all clippings away from pond banks. It is understood that 
trash of any kind and other debris within arm’s reach of water’s edge shall be removed & 
disposed of by Contractor during every normal service event. Unless otherwise designated 
on Maintenance Exhibit/Plans, homeowners are responsible for mowing down to the 
water’s edge behind their property.  

 
The Contractor shall mow within the Contract Areas 1 thru 4 as described below (shown on the 
Maintenance Map). The growing season shall be defined as April 1 through October 31. The 
dormant season shall be defined as  November 1 through March 31. Each mowing shall be 
completed for the entire contract area within four (4) days after commencement of the mowing. 

AREA 1: Entry Roadways, Amenity Site & Sports Park - 1 time per week during the growing 
season and twice a month during the dormant season, for a total of 41 cuts. Bermuda grass shall 
be maintained at a 2" height.  

AREA 2:  Roadside Common Area - 1 time (bi-weekly) every fourteen (14) calendar days during 
the growing season and once a month during the dormant season, for a total of 21 cuts. 
 
AREA 3: Ponds 1 time (bi-weekly) every fourteen (14) calendar days during the growing season 
and once a month during the dormant season, for a total of21 cuts. 
 
AREA 4: Drainage Easements These (4) four areas indicated on the maintenance map shall be 
mowed from the resident property line to the bottom of the berm and/or fence. The mowing 
frequency will be determined by owner/district representatives. This service shall be 
accomplished with a bush hog or rotary mower. 

2) EDGING AND TRIMMING – All hard-edged areas (curbs, sidewalks, bike paths, 
nature trails, etc.) and soft-edged areas (tree rings, shrub, and groundcover bed lines) shall 
be edged during each mowing event. All edging shall be performed to the sole satisfaction 
of the DISTRICT. Chemical edging shall not be permitted anywhere on property.  

 
AT NO TIME SHALL LAWN BE ALLOWED TO GROW IN AN UNSIGHTLY 
MANNER. SHOULD THIS OCCUR, THE CONTRACTOR AGREES TO 
CORRECT WITHIN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS OF NOTICE BY DISTRICT.  

 
3) TREE AND SHRUB CARE – Branches will be pruned just outside the branch collar. 
Branches and limbs shall be kept off buildings, signage structures, play structures, fences 
& walls as well as pruned to keep streetlights and traffic signage from being blocked to a 



22 
 

maximum of twelve (12ft.) Additionally, on an as-needed basis, all trees shall be pruned 
over sidewalks, conservation areas, parking lots, driveways & roadways so as not to 
interfere with pedestrians, cars or other vehicles. (This is to include always maintaining a 
minimum of fourteen and a half (14.5) feet (but shall vary according to DOT specs) of 
clearance under all limbs depending on location and species of tree.). Aesthetic pruning 
shall consist of the removal of dead and/or broken branches as often as necessary to have 
trees always appear neat. Sucker growth at the base of the trees shall be removed by hand 
continuously throughout the year. 

  
All shrubs will be pruned as necessary to retain an attractive shape and fullness, removing 
broken or dead limbs as necessary to provide a neat and clean appearance. Shrubs shall not 
be clipped into balled or boxed forms unless such forms are required by design. Shrubs 
shall be pruned in accordance with the intended function of the plant in its present location. 
Flowering shrubs shall be pruned immediately after the blossoms have cured with top 
pruning restricted to shaping the terminal growth. All pruning shall be done with 
horticultural skill and knowledge to maintain an overall acceptable appearance consistent 
with the current aesthetics of the Bartram Springs CDD community. The Contractor agrees 
that pruning is an art that must be done under the supervision of a highly trained supervisor 
and shall make provisions for such supervision. Individual plants pruned into rounded balls 
or unnatural shapes will not be allowed. All clippings and debris from pruning will be 
carted away at the time pruning takes place.  

 
Palms: All palms shall receive pruning as often as necessary to always appear neat and 
clean to include after high wind occurrences. This includes brown and/or broken fronds 
and inflorescence. Removal of green or even yellowing fronds is unnecessary. Fronds 
should be removed only once they turn brown or become broken or disrupt the flow of 
pedestrian/vehicular traffic or are hanging on architectural structures. Fruit pods shall be 
removed prior to development. Tarpaulins shall be used in areas where date palms and 
other palm fruits may stain sidewalks & pavement including, but not limited to, pool decks. 
The contractor shall be responsible for the removal of all palm fruit stains. “Hurricane” 
palm pruning shall never be allowed. 

 
4) WEEDS AND GRASSES – All groundcover and turf areas shall be kept reasonably 
free of weeds and grasses and be neatly cultivated and maintained in an orderly fashion. 
This may be accomplished by carefully applied applications of pre & post emergent 
herbicides as part of fertilizer mixtures and post-emergent herbicide spot treatments on an 
as-needed basis. The condition of turf is to be determined by the district at its sole 
discretion. All shrub and bed areas shall be maintained each mowing service by removing 
all weeds, trash and other undesirable material and debris to keep the area neat and tidy. 
All ornamental beds, hedge areas and tree rings shall be kept weed (and sod) free 
throughout the year. This is to be accomplished through hand pulling or the careful 
application of a post-emergent herbicide. The contractor shall include the quarterly hand 
removal of all dog fennel (and other invasives) along the main roadways and view 
corridors. AT NO TIME SHALL POST-EMERGENT HERBICIDES BE 
PERMITTED WHEN WEEDS HAVE ESTABLISHED THEMSELVES AS TO 
DOMINATE PLANTING BEDS. HAND PULLING MUST BE PERFORMED.  



23 
 

 
NON-SELECTIVE, POST-EMERGENT HERBICIDES SHALL NEVER BE USED 
TO CONTROL WEED/SOD GROWTH AROUND STRUCTURES OF ANY TYPE 
(I.E. STREET SIGNS, UTILITY BOXES, STREET LIGHTS, PAVEMENT, ETC.) 
THE FIRST OFFENSE WILL RESULT IN A VERBAL WARNING; THE SECOND 
OFFENSE WILL RESULT IN A SECOND VERBAL WARNING AND THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR THE DISTRICT WILL BE NOTIFIED; THE 
THIRD OFFENSE MAY TERMINATE THIS CONTRACT FOR CAUSE AT THE 
DISTRICT’S DISCRETION.  

 
The Contractor shall be responsible for the replacement of ornamental plants killed or damaged by 
herbicide application. All fence lines shall be kept clear of weeds, undesirable vines, and 
overhanging limbs.  
 

5) MAINTENANCE OF PAVED AREAS – All paved areas shall be kept weed free. This 
may be accomplished by mechanical means (line trimmer) or by applications of post/pre-
emergent herbicides. Weeds greater than two (2) inches in height or width shall be pulled 
from paved areas, not sprayed. No sprays with dyes may be used on any paved areas.  
 
6) CLEAN UP – At no time will Contractor leave the premises after completion of any 
work in any type of disarray. All clippings, trimmings, debris, dirt, or any other unsightly 
material shall be removed promptly upon completion of work. The contractor shall use his 
own waste disposal methods, never the property dumpsters. Grass clippings, leaves and 
vegetative debris shall be blown off sidewalks, streets, and curbs into the turf areas, never 
into mulched bed areas as these are to be maintained free of grass clippings and weeds. NO 
CLIPPINGS SHALL BE BLOWN DOWN CURB INLETS. At no time shall the 
clippings be left on the sidewalks, streets, and curbs overnight. The contractor shall be 
responsible for blowing grass clippings, leaves, vegetative debris, and other debris off pool 
decks, volleyball and basketball courts, and parking lots at the time of service.  

 
During months of heavy leaf fall, the Contractor will remove leaves from turf areas 
(including medians) and haul away to prevent leaves from matting atop turf and to allow 
for proper maintenance and weed control.  

 
7) TRASH REMOVAL - The Contractor will, prior to mowing, pick up all bottles, cans, 
fallen limbs and palm fronds and other debris and trash on the property including bogus 
signs such as "For Sale" signs displayed in rights-of-way and common areas by owners and 
realtors.  
 
 
8) STAFFING - Minimum staffing requirements shall be as follows:  
 
Time Period                   Crew Size Hours  
May 1 to September 
30  

5 (4 crew members 
and 1 leader)  

8 hours a day, 2 days 
a week, monthly. 



24 
 

October 1 to April 30 4 (4 crew members 
and 1 leader) 

8 hours a day, 2 days 
a week, bi-monthly 

 

Any enhancements beyond the scope of this Agreement and authorized by the district must 
be installed by additional crew members unless use of the standard required crew is 
approved by the district. The district’s authorization of additional work or enhancements 
shall not relieve the Contractor of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
9) REPLACEMENT OF PLANT MATERIAL – Tree and shrubs in a state of decline 
should immediately be brought to the attention of the district. Dead or unsightly plant 
material shall be removed expeditiously upon notification of the district. The contractor 
shall be responsible for replacement if due to his negligence. New plant material shall be 
guaranteed for a period of one (1) year for trees and ninety (90) days for shrubs, ground 
cover and lawn after final acceptance. The contractor will replace said dead or unsightly 
plant material not to exceed $ 200.00 per month with the approval of the Field Operations 
Manager.  
 
Any turf, shrubs, trees that die because of the Contractor’s failure to maintain the irrigation 
system as specified in Part 4 shall be replaced at the Contractor’s expense.  

 
10) SEASONAL COLOR/ANNUALS - A schedule of all annual plant options will be 
discussed with the Field Operations Manager or General Manager prior to installation to 
ensure the choice of plant pattern and plants are conducive to that season. Annuals shall be 
changed out in four cycles yearly – Spring (March), Summer (June), Fall (September) and 
Winter (December). Color and species shall be approved by the District prior to 
installation. Additional soil amendments, fungicides and insect applications will be 
performed to maintain vigorous growth and color.  

 
11) MAKE UP DAYS - If Contractor misses a service due to inclement weather or any 
other reason, he is required to make up service the same week. 

PART 2 
FERTILIZATION 

 
Contractor must comply with the St. Johns and Duval County Fertilizer Ordinance in total.  
 
All turf shall be fertilized according to the following IFAS Guidelines for a high maintenance level 
for northeast Florida turf, which is outlined below. It is incumbent upon the Contractor to review 
such guidelines for conformance with northeast Florida recommendations.  
 
All Bahia Sod:  
March  A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + Pre-M  
April   Nitrogen (soluble Nitrogen applied at 0.5 lbs. N/1000 SF)  
June   SRN (Slow-Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF)  
August  Fe For foliar application, use ferrous sulfate (2 oz. /3-5 gal. H2O/1,000 SF)  



25 
 

October  A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + Pre-M  
 
All Bermuda Sod:  
March   A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + Pre-M  
April   N (Soluble Nitrogen applied at .5 lbs. N/1000 SF  
May   SRN (Slow-Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF  
July   A complete fertilizer based on soil tests.  
August  Fe (for foliar apps, use ferrous sulfate @ 2 oz. /3-5-gal H2O/1000 SF). If Fe is 

applied to an acidic soil, use 1 lb. of iron sulfate/1000 SF. If soil is calcareous, use 
the container label recommended rate of an iron chelate.)  

September  SRN (Slow-Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF  
November  A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + Pre-M  
 
All St. Augustine Sod:  
February  A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + Pre-M  
April   Nitrogen (soluble Nitrogen applied at 0.5 lbs. N/1000 SF  
May   SRN (Slow-Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF  
July   Fe For foliar application, use ferrous sulfate (2 oz. /3-5 gal. H2O/1,000 SF)  
August  SRN (Slow-Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF  
October  A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + Pre-M 

At times environmental conditions may require additional applications of nutrients, augmenting 
the above fertilization programs to ensure that turf areas are kept uniformly green, healthy and in 
top condition. It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to determine specific needs and 
requirements and notify the resident project representative when these additional applications are 
needed.  
 
Fertilizers containing iron shall be removed from all hard surfaces to avoid staining before the 
sprinklers are activated after application of the fertilizer. Any stains caused by a failure to do so 
will be the responsibility of the contractor to remove.  
 
Soil test samples shall be taken by the contractor to determine the presence of Phosphorus and 
whether changes in the fertilizer pH or formulations are required. Should changes be of merit, the 
Contractor shall notify the district in writing prior to the implementation of such changes.  
 
Fertilizer shall be applied in a uniform manner. If streaking of the turf occurs, correction will be 
required at no additional cost to the District. Fertilizer shall be swept/blown off all hard surfaces 
onto lawns or beds to avoid staining. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR’S 
RESPONSIBILITY TO REMOVE ANY STAINS FROM ANY HARD SURFACES ON 
THE PROPERTY CAUSED BY THEIR NEGLIGENCE OF THE FERTILIZER 
APPLICATION. Fertilizer shall not be applied within ten (10) feet from the landward extent of 
any surface water. Spreader deflector shields are required when applying fertilizer by use of any 
broadcast or rotary spreader. Deflector shields must be positioned such that fertilizer granules are 
deflected away from all impervious surfaces and surface waters.  
 
VETERANS PARK ANNUAL TREATMENTS, AERIFICATION, FERTILIZATION AND 
OVERSEEDING 



26 
 

 
Contractor shall assume the cost for proper treatment to restore the athletic fields to include: 

4 aerification and water-soluble nitrogen fertilization during the growing season. 

4 applications of complete granular fertilization during the growing season. 

4 applications of Primo Max regulator during the growing season. 

Top dressing with sand after aeration (4x per year or as required) and weekly mowing with a “reel” 
mower. 

Overseeding both Bermuda Sports Fields at a rate of 8 pounds of Rye Seed per 1000sqft or as 
needed. 

 
SHRUB, TREE & GROUNDCOVER FERTILIZATION:  
 
For purposes of bidding, all shrubs, groundcovers, and trees shall be fertilized according to the 
following specifications:  
 
3 Times a year – (March, June, October)  
 
A complete fertilizer (formula will vary according to soil test results) at a rate of 4-6 lbs. N/1000 
sq. ft. /year. (A minimum 50% Nitrogen shall be in a slow-release form)  
 
Fertilizer shall be applied by hand in a uniform manner, broadcast around the plants, but never in 
direct contact with stems or trunks. Fertilizer shall never be piled around plants. All fertilizer 
remaining on the leaves of the plants is to be brushed or blown off. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR’S 
RESPONSIBILITY TO REPLACE ANY PLANT MATERIAL DAMAGED BY 
FERTILIZATION BURN DUE TO HIS NEGLIGENCE.  
 
PALM FERTILIZATION:  
 
All Palms shall receive 1 ½ pounds of 8N-2P2O5-12K2O+4Mg with micronutrients per 100 SF of 
palm canopy four times per year (March, June, September, November). 100% of the N, K & Mg 
MUST be in slow-release form. All micronutrients must be in water soluble form. Fertilizer shall 
be broadcast evenly under the dripline of the canopy but must be kept at least 6” from the palm 
trunk.  
 
Fertilizer shall not be billed equally monthly but invoiced the month after application. 

Contractor must notify the district 48 hours prior to performing any palm fertilization.  
Contractor shall provide the DISTRICT with all fertilizer analysis tags from the fertilizer to 
verify correct formulation and quantity. Payment will not be made until the correct quantity 
and formulation has been verified and applied. The contractor must notify the district five 
(5) working days in advance of the day the property is scheduled to be fertilized. Failure on 



27 
 

the part of the Contractor to so notify the district may result in the Contractor forfeiting all 
rights to payment for the applications made without notification. 

 

PART 3 
PEST CONTROL 

 
INSECTS AND DISEASE IN TURF - Insect and disease control spraying in turf shall be 
provided by the Contractor every month (or as needed if not required - Contractor should consult 
with District's Designee if insect/disease control is not required) with additional spot treatment as 
needed. During the weekly inspections, the Contractor is responsible for the identification and 
eradication/control of disease and insect damage including but not limited to scale, mites, fungus, 
chinch bugs, grubs, nematodes, fire ants, mole crickets, etc. The contractor shall pay for the 
chemicals. Please list all chemicals that you will include in your fertilizer applications in the space 
allocated for “formula” under the fertilization section in the bid form. Also include the cost of 
these chemicals as part of the fertilizer application. Any anticipated additional treatments shall be 
included in the Pest Control portion of the bid form.  
 
INSECTS AND DISEASE CONTROL FOR TREES, PALMS AND PLANTS - The 
Contractor is responsible for the treatment of insects and diseases for all plants. The appropriate 
insecticide or fungicide will be applied in accordance with state and local regulations, and as 
weather and environmental conditions permit. The contractor shall pay for the chemicals. There 
are several afflictions that may be detrimental to the health of many trees and palms. The contractor 
will be fully responsible for the treatment of such afflictions. At the District’s discretion, this may 
include the quarterly inoculation of all palms susceptible to Lethal Yellowing and/or Texas 
Phoenix Palm Decline. The cost of these inoculations should be included as a separate line item in 
your Pest Control price. The contractor is to identify those species of palms susceptible and supply 
a list of species and quantities with a proposal. Each susceptible palm shall receive quarterly 
injections. Each injection site/valve can be used only twice. The third quarterly injection requires 
a new valve and injection site. Contractor is asked to provide cost per injection (material & labor) 
multiplied by quantity of susceptible palms multiplied by four inoculations per year in bid form. 
The District reserves the right to subcontract out all OTC Injection events. This will not be 
included in the Contract Amount.  
 
The contractor will perform biweekly inspections of all District owned property at which 
time a punch list of deficiencies and corrective measures will be presented to the district’s 
Field Operations Manager.  
 
The Contractor is required to inspect all landscaped areas during each visit for indication of pest 
problems. When control is necessary, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to properly apply 
low toxicity and target-specific pesticide. If pesticides are necessary, they will be applied on a spot 
treatment basis when wind drift is not a threat. Top Choice ant bait will be used once annually at 
the grass areas where special events are held at the Amenity Center or Veterans Park.  
 
Careful inspection of the property on each visit is crucial to maintaining a successful program. It 
is the Contractor’s full responsibility to ensure that the person inspecting the property is properly 



28 
 

trained in recognizing the symptoms of both insect infestations and plant pathogen damage 
(funguses, bacteria, etc.). It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to treat these conditions in an 
expedient manner.  
 
It shall also be the Contractor’s responsibility to furnish the resident project representative with a 
copy of the Pest Management Report which he is to complete at every service as well as all 
certifications (including BMP Certifications) of all pesticide applicators. The contractor shall 
familiarize himself with all current regulations regarding the applications of pesticides and 
fertilizers. 

If at any time the district should become aware of any pest problems, it will be the Contractor’s 
responsibility to treat pests within five (5) working days of the date of notification.  
 
FIRE ANT CONTROL  
 
The contractor is required to inspect property each visit for evidence of fire ant mounds and 
immediately treat upon evidence of active mounds. In small areas control can be achieved by 
individual mound treatment. Active mounds in larger turf areas will require broadcast application 
of bait.  
 
For informational purposes only, Contractor is asked to provide the cost for the annual application 
of Top Choice in all finished landscaped and irrigated areas on the Plans/Maintenance Exhibit. 
This does not include lake banks behind the residential properties or between ponds and 
conservation areas.  
 
Pest Control will not be included as a standard line item in each monthly billing but shall be 
invoiced as a separate line item the month after service is rendered.  
 
Pest Control shall be included in the Contract Amount. 

PART 4 
IRRIGATION SYSTEM MONITORING AND MAINTENANCE 

 
IRRIGATION SYSTEM. The Contractor shall inspect and test the irrigation system components 
twice monthly during the growing season (April l- October 31) and once a month during the 
dormant season (November I-March 31). This shall include all the existing irrigation systems. The 
irrigation system summary table of controllers, zones and clocks are provided to the Contractor 
herein. All routine repairs shall be included as part of the contracted amount; system integrity 
repairs that are related to the infrastructural integrity of the irrigation system shall be borne by the 
district. Should Contractor have a disagreement about the nature of the repair, the Contractor shall 
work with the District and its Designee in good faith to resolve such disagreement.  
 

A. Irrigation Controllers  
1. Semi-automatic start of the automatic irrigation controller.  
2. Check for proper operation.  
3. Lubricate and adjust mechanical components. 



29 
 

4. Test back up programming support devices.  
5. Ensure the proper operation of each automatic rain shutoff device. If none, provide 

a proposal for the installation to be included in the 30-day irrigation audit.  
B. Water Sources 

1. Visual inspection of water source.  
2. Clean all ground strainers and filters regularly.  
3. Test each pump (if applicable) at design capacities weekly and inform the District 

Designee of any problems immediately. This is to minimize the time a water source 
is down. The contractor shall also confirm weekly that all backflow preventers are 
on and operating properly, if applicable.  

4. Test automatic protection devices.  
C. Irrigation Systems  

1. Manual test and inspection of each irrigation zone in its entirety.  
2. Clean and raise heads as necessary.  
3. Adjust arc pattern and distance for required coverage areas.  
4. Clean out irrigation valve boxes.  
5. Inspect and maintain battery-operated valves throughout the property and replace 

batteries as needed. The contractor shall be responsible for ordering replacement 
batteries, the cost of which shall be billed to the district at actual cost with no 
markup.  

D. Report  
1. Irrigation operation time.  
2. Irrigation start time. 
3. Maintenance items performed. 
4. General comment and recommendations. 

 

The above list is for routine maintenance and adjustment of the existing irrigation system 
components. Locating and repairing or replacing automatic valves or control wires and irrigation 
controller or large-scale repairs are to be considered additional items. Contractor shall provide a 
list of additional charges and pricing for such items other than routine maintenance as a 
separate price from this bid. 

Routine irrigation maintenance is to be completed monthly. Each zone is to be turned on and 
operated for as long as necessary to verify proper operation. Each head, seal, nozzle, and strainer 
are to be inspected for adjustment and shall be aligned, packed, cleaned and repaired, as necessary. 
Shrubs, groundcovers, and turf around sprinkler heads shall be trimmed to always maintain 
maximum clearance for the greatest coverage. The contractor shall also provide risers as needed 
to raise heads to a suitable height above plant material, when necessary, at no additional cost to 
District. All below ground repairs including valves, pumps and wiring require an estimate for all 
such repairs. Upon written approval from Management, Contractor shall proceed. In the event of 
an emergency, Contractor shall make a diligent effort to contact, with the approximate price or 
estimate of repairs, Management, or their assign prior to making such repair.  



30 
 

 
Upon being awarded contract, Contractor shall have a period of ten (10) business days from date 
of commencement to perform a thorough audit of the entire irrigation system listing items that 
need repair/replacement for the system to operate properly. A separate audit may also be provided 
by the Contractor listing those items that would improve the irrigation system. Any action taken 
regarding the Irrigation Audit will be at the Board of Supervisors’ discretion.  
 
Assuming the Board of Supervisors approves the repairs listed in the 30-day audit and after such 
repairs have been made, after the ten (10) day period has expired and for the duration of the 
contract, Contractor shall assume, at no additional cost to the District, responsibility for any and 
all maintenance deficiencies, including parts and labor, associated with the irrigation system, to 
include sprinkler heads, nozzles, drip, main and delivery lines and any associated fittings. Said 
repairs shall be performed immediately. The District's Designee shall be notified what day and 
time of the week the irrigation tech will be available servicing the community. The Contractor will 
keep detailed irrigation reports consisting of run times and correct operation of the system. A copy 
of this report will be maintained by the Contractor and a copy delivered to the District's Designee, 
along with the weekly report. At no time shall the Contractor leave the property knowing of the 
need for a repair and not reporting it.  
 
Watering schedules shall meet all government regulations, and zone times will be adjusted 
depending on job conditions, climactic conditions and all watering restrictions of St. Johns County 
and Duval County, or any other governmental agencies. It is the responsibility of the Contractor 
to ensure the turf and plant material remains healthy. If the Contractor finds that the irrigation 
system cannot adequately cover the district in the allotted time, it will be the Contractor’s 
responsibility to bring this to the attention of the district representative and apply for a variance. 
Violations and/or fines imposed by any local or state agency will be deducted from the 
Contractor’s monthly payment.  
 
Emergency service shall be available after normal working hours and an emergency telephone 
number will be provided to Management.  
 
FREEZE PROTECTION. The Contractor shall describe ability and cost per man-hour to provide 
freeze protection for both landscape material and pumps/wells. 
 

1. Responsibility for Sprinkler Head Repairs: Contractor shall have sixty (60) days from the 
effective date of the Agreement to conduct a comprehensive review of the district’s 
irrigation system, including all sprinkler heads, and submit proposals for any items needing 
repair. After the 60-day period has expired and any necessary repairs have been made, 
Contractor and District shall share the cost of sprinkler head repairs 50/50; i.e., the 
Contractor shall bear 50% of the applicable sprinkler head repair costs and the district shall 
bear 50% of the applicable sprinkler head repair costs. Contractor shall not be responsible 
for any items identified as needing repair if the district does not authorize the recommended 
repair.  

2. Bid Alternate: Contractor shall submit a price to provide a full time Irrigation Technician 
/ Water Manger to provide routine maintenance as stated in this section, make repairs 



31 
 

related to the irrigation systems in the district, manage all controllers to provide seasonal 
watering requirements and minimize irrigation use when conditions allow. This would 
replace irrigation inspections totals on the Proposal summaries.  

 
 

PART 5 
INSTALLATION OF MULCH 

 
After prior approval by the Board of Supervisors, Contractor shall top dress all currently 
landscaped areas as shown on the plans/maintenance map (landscaped beds & tree rings) at the 
Amenity Center and Veterans Park with Brown Cyprus Mulch (or the choice of the designee) in 
the beds and Pine Straw Mulch on Bartram Springs Parkway. The interior of the dog park area will 
receive hardwood colored mulch chips to maintain an acceptable depth for the intended use of this 
area (4-6 inches). All playground areas will be maintained with the certified required depth to 
follow playground regulations at a minimum of twice (2) per year.  
 
Mulched areas should be raked, leveled, or mulch removed to maintain 3”-4” level of mulch in 
beds prior to the installation of new mulch. Such an application is expected to be twice per year 
(May and November). In doing so, Contractor shall ensure that all mulched areas (excluding 
playground and dog park) are brought to a minimum depth of three (3) inches after compaction. 
The contractor is responsible for all necessary cleanups related to this procedure.  
 
The District’s Field Operations Manager should be notified 2 weeks prior to mulch installation to 
assure that proper trenching occurs to assure mulch does not spill over into walkways, paths, 
hardscapes, etc.  
 
The contractor agrees to provide neat and defined lines along the edges of all mulched areas. This 
is done to facilitate mechanical edging of these areas. Additionally, Contractor shall properly 
trench all bedlines adjacent to concrete surfaces. Trenches shall be 3” deep and beveled. Mulched 
beds on slopes adjacent to turf shall also be trenched to a depth of 3” & beveled to reduce mulch 
washout. Mulch shall not be piled around tree trunks or bases of plants. Any mulch “volcanoes” 
around tree trunks shall be corrected immediately at no additional cost to District.  
 
Contractor agrees to ensure that mulch caught in plant material will be shaken or blown from 
plants, so that upon completion there is no plant material left covered with mulch.  
 
If, after installation is complete and it is determined that additional mulch or Pine Straw is required 
to attain the required 3” depth, sufficient mulch shall be supplied by Contractor at no additional 
cost to District.  
 
At the Amenity Facility, including but not limited to the pool area, the Contractor must REMOVE 
old mulch and replace it with new mulch up to the 3” depth. Supplementation elsewhere is 
permissible.  
 
This item will not be included in the contract amount and shall be invoiced separately the 
month after service is rendered. The contractor shall provide a price per cubic yard and 



32 
 

estimated quantities to be installed per top dressing (based on his own field measurements) 
and shall submit with bid.  
 
The District reserves the right to subcontract out all mulching events. 
 

PART 6 
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
QUALITY CONTROL INSPECTIONS - A qualified representative from the Contractor's firm 
shall accompany the district representative on monthly quality inspections. Any deficiencies 
within the scope of service shall be corrected with 7 days of each inspection. 
 
REPORTING - A written report shall be completed and submitted 10 days prior to the monthly 
CDD Board of Supervisors meeting outlining the anticipated work schedule for the following 
month. This report shall indicate fertilization and pest control schedules, irrigation run schedules 
as well as special projects needing attention. 

 
ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS - Upon request of the District, the Contractor shall attend 
regularly scheduled District meetings. 
 
LICENSURE - Contractor must have and maintain the appropriate licensure for business 
operation within St. Johns and Duval County and the State of Florida. This includes irrigation 
licensing, pest control business license and applicable business license.  



33 
 

	



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



1 
4893-7542-9029.1  

NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE BARTRAM 
SPRINGS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND CHAMPION SWIM 

SCHOOL, LLC, REGARDING THE USE OF THE DISTRICT’S AMENITY 
FACILITIES 

 
 THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 22nd day of 
February, 2024, by and between:  
 

BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
located in Duval County, Florida, and with a mailing address of 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the “District”), and  
 
CHAMPION SWIM SCHOOL, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, with a 
mailing address of 14701 Bartram Park Blvd 1317, Jacksonville, Florida 32258 (the 
“Licensee”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to and governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates, and/or maintains various recreation facilities, 
including, but not limited to an Activity Center, within the boundaries of the District (the 
“Amenity Facilities”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Licensee currently provides swim instruction and has asked the Board of 
Supervisors of the District for permission to provide swim lessons at the Amenity Facilities, as further 
described in Exhibit A (the “Services”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is willing to grant a non-exclusive, revocable license allowing the 
Licensee to enter a specific portion of the Amenity Facilities for the purposes of providing the 
Services, provided that such use does not impede the District’s operation of the Amenity Facilities 
as a public improvement; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants 
of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the District 
and the Licensee agree as follows: 
 
 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The Recitals stated above are true and correct and 
are incorporated herein as a material part of this Agreement.  
 
 2. LICENSE.  The District hereby grants and conveys to the Licensee a non-exclusive 
license to enter a specific portion of the Amenity Facilities for the purposes of providing the 
Services (the “License”). Licensee agrees it shall provide Services to the District’s Patrons only. 
“Patrons” for purposes of this Agreement shall have that meaning as defined in the District’s 
“Policies Regarding District Amenity Facilities,” as amended and revised from time to time.  At 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593



2 
4893-7542-9029.1  

the District’s request, Licensee shall provide a list of the Patrons who utilize Licensee’s Services 
to the District Manager, as such list may change from time to time.  This list must contain member 
names and addresses for verification of Member status.   
 

3. HOURS AND AREA.  Licensee shall coordinate Services directly with the District 
Manager or his/her on-site management designee.  Licensee shall schedule all Services in advance 
pursuant to the means and methods set forth by the District Manager and his/her on-site 
management designee, who shall have final and absolute discretion with respect to matters related 
to scheduling and designation of area of Amenity Facilities where such Services may be provided.  
Unless otherwise revised as set forth in this section, the schedule for Services shall be as set forth 
on Exhibit A.   
 

4.  USE OF AREA.  Licensee shall not have exclusive use of the Amenity Facilities, but 
shall have exclusive use of the designated portion or area of the Amenity Facilities for operation 
of the Services during the hours approved by District Manager.  However, Licensee’s use shall not 
interfere with the operation of the Amenity Facilities as a public improvement and the Licensee 
hereby agrees that in the event District-owned real property is assessed real property taxes by 
virtue of this License, Licensee hereby agrees to pay any all such taxes.  The Licensee agrees that 
all use of the Amenity Facilities shall be subject to the rules and policies of the District and the 
District shall have the right to take such actions as are necessary to preserve the health, safety, and 
welfare of its residents, landowners, lands, and facilities. 

 
5. CAPACITY OF POOL.  Licensee shall determine the size of each swim class and the 

appropriate ratio of swim students to instructors, provided, however, that Licensee shall provide 
the expected number of swim students to the Amenities Manager and cooperate in good faith with 
the Amenities Manager to ensure that pool capacity is not exceeded.  Amenities Manager shall 
make a good faith effort to minimize disruption to Licensee’s scheduled activities, and the pool 
attendants, if any, agree to assist in keeping the designated area clear of other patrons so as not to 
disrupt the scheduled activities of the Licensee.   
 

6. TERM.   This Agreement shall commence upon the date and time first written above, 
and shall continue in effect until terminated by either party hereto.   
 
 7. PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT.  Licensee represents that it is qualified to provide the 
Services and to provide certified, trained and qualified instructors.  Licensee shall maintain all 
required licenses in effect and shall at all times exercise sound professional judgment in provision 
of the Services, including taking precautions for the safety of its students and employees.  All 
minors taking part in the Services offered shall only be with the consent of a parent or guardian.  
The District shall in no way be responsible for the safety of any student while taking part in the 
Services.  Any and all waivers signed by Licensee’s users shall acknowledge the fact that the 
District is not responsible.  Licensee shall remain an active Florida business in good standing 
during the term of this License.  Failure to do so shall allow the District to immediately terminate 
the License. 
 

8. CARE OF PROPERTY.  The Licensee agrees to use all due care to protect the 
property of the District, its residents, and landowners from damage, and to require any participants 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593



3 
4893-7542-9029.1  

in the Services to do the same.  The Licensee agrees that it shall assume responsibility for any and 
all damage to the District’s Amenity Facilities or lands as a result of the Licensee’s use under this 
Agreement and other damage, other than ordinary wear and tear, which may be attributable to an 
act or omission by the Licensee or its agent.  In the event that any damage to the District’s Amenity 
Facilities or lands occurs, the District shall notify the Licensee of such damage.  The Licensee 
agrees that the District may make whatever arrangements the District, in its sole discretion, deems 
necessary to promptly make any such repairs as are necessary to preserve the health, safety, and 
welfare of the District's lands, facilities, residents and landowners.  The Licensee agrees to 
reimburse the District for any such repairs within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from the 
District reflecting the cost of the repairs made under this Paragraph. 

 
9. REVOCATION.  The District shall have the right to revoke the License at any time 

upon notice to the Licensee due to the Licensee’s failure to perform in accordance with the terms 
of this Agreement or for any other reason.  
 

10. ENFORCEMENT. A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the 
other party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which includes, but is not limited to, the 
rights of damages, injunctive relief, and specific performance.  
 
 11.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY.  Licensee shall acquire and maintain general 
commercial liability insurance coverage acceptable to the District in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, which shall include all claims and losses that may relate in any manner 
whatsoever to use of the License by Licensee, its employees, agents, students, guests or invitees.  
The District shall be a named insured on such policy.  Licensee shall provide continuous proof of 
such insurance coverage to the District.  
   

A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court 
costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney fees, and paralegal 
fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered. 
 
B. Licensee will indemnify, save, and hold the District harmless and shall defend the 
District from all loss, damage, or injury, including all judgments, liens, liabilities, debts, 
and obligations resulting directly from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of 
Licensee’s officers, directors, agents, assigns, or employees, which cause harm to persons 
or property, specifically including but not limited to all acts or omissions of Licensee’s 
officers, directors, agents, assigns, or employees.  Licensee agrees that nothing in this 
Agreement shall serve as or be construed as a waiver of the District’s limitations on liability 
contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute or law. 

 
 12. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES.  In the event either party to this Agreement is 
required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to recover from the other party all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs. 
 
 13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593



4 
4893-7542-9029.1  

 
 14. AMENDMENT. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the parties 
to the Agreement. 
 
 15. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Licensee may assign their rights, duties 
or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other.  Any purported 
assignment without said written authorization shall be void. 
 
 16. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State of 
Florida.  The parties agree that venue for any dispute arising hereunder shall be in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction in Duval County, Florida. 
 
 17. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents, and other communications hereunder 
(“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by Federal Express or First Class 
Mail, postage prepaid, to the parties as follows: 
 
  A. If to the District: Bartram Springs Community Development District  

     475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
     St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

      Attn: District Manager 
 
   With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP 
      Post Office Box 10230 
      Tallahassee, Florida  32302 
      Attn: Wesley S. Haber 
 
  B. If to the Licensee: Champion Swim School, LLC 
      14701 Bartram Park Blvd 1317 
      Jacksonville, Florida 32258 
      Attn: Pamela Villa 
 
Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon 
actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of 
delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any time 
for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the 
Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Licensee may deliver Notice on behalf of the District 
and the Licensee.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent 
by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 

18.  SEVERABILITY.  Should any provision of this Agreement be held invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall remain valid and enforceable. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593

pam@championswimschools.com
Signature



5 
4893-7542-9029.1  

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Agreement the day and year first written 
above. 
 
 
Attest:      BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________  _________________________________________ 
Secretary     Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Witnesses:     CHAMPION SWIM SCHOOL, LLC 
 
 
_____________________________  By:_______________________________________  
Signature      
      Its:_______________________________________ 
_____________________________   
Print Name of Witness 
 
_____________________________ 
Signature      
       
_____________________________   
Print Name of Witness 
 
 
Exhibit A: Services 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593

pam@championswimschools.com
Signature

pam@championswimschools.com
Signature



4893-7542-9029.1  

Exhibit A: 
Services 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593



4893-7542-9029.1  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593



4893-7542-9029.1  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593



4893-7542-9029.1  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593



4893-7542-9029.1  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3C953E21-994D-4407-BEF1-9F9EDB5CC593



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



 

1 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

AND BARTRAM BARRACUDAS SWIM TEAM, REGARDING THE USE 
OF THE DISTRICT’S COMPETITION POOL 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ___ day of 
___________, 2024, by and between:  
 

Bartram Springs Community Development District, a local unit of special- 
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located 
in Duval County, Florida, whose address is 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. 
Augustine, Florida 32092 (the “District”), and  
 
Bartram Barracudas Swim Team, a non-profit swim club, with a mailing 
address of 6256 Courtney Crest Lane, Jacksonville, Florida 32258 (the 
“Licensee”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to and governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District owns and maintains as public improvements a recreation facility 
(“Amenity Facility”) which includes a Competition Pool; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Licensee currently operates a swim team which includes use of the 
Competition Pool (“Swim Team”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and the Licensee warrant and agree that they have all right, 
power, and authority to enter into and be bound by this License Agreement.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual 
covenants of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
the District and the Licensee agree as follows: 
 
 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The Recitals stated above are true and correct 
and are incorporated herein as a material part of this License Agreement.  
 
 2. GRANT OF LICENSE.  The District hereby grants to the Licensee a license to use 
the Competition Pool for Swim Team practices, in accordance with the schedule attached hereto 
as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference (“License”).  In consideration of said use of 
the Competition Pool, Licensee agrees to the following conditions: 
 

A. Licensee’s access is limited to the Competition Pool, the adjacent pool 
deck, the Amenity Facility restrooms, Amenity Facility ice machine, and the 



 

2 

parking lot serving the Amenity Facility.  No other use of, or access to, the 
Amenity Facility is permitted.  Licensee does not have the right to access or use 
other parts of the District’s swimming pool.   
 
B. Licensee’s access to the Competition Pool is limited to Swim Team 
practices, events and swimming competitions (“Swim Meets”) as set forth in 
Exhibit A; provided, however, that Licensee must schedule and compensate two 
licensed lifeguards to be on duty at all times during Swim Meets.   
 
C. The parties acknowledge that weather conditions will affect the use of the 
Competition Pool at any given time.  The District shall have the right to 
temporarily close the Competition Pool on any given day due to inclement 
weather, including but not limited to, rain, lightning, hail, and strong winds.  
Licensee shall abide by the decision of the District as to the closure of the 
Competition Pool.   
 
D. Licensee shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, swim team 
members, guest, invitees, agents or students at all times that Licensee is 
exercising its rights under this Agreement.    
 
E. Only Swim Team participants and coaches using the pool for practice are 
permitted to enter the Competition Pool, except in case of emergency.  Family 
members and/or guests of Licensee may not use the Competition Pool in 
conjunction with this License. 
 
F. Licensee’s use of the Competition Pool shall be contemporaneous with the 
use of the Amenity Facility by Patrons (as that term is defined in the Policies 
Regarding District Amenity Facilities), and Licensee’s use shall not interfere with 
the operation of the Amenity Facility as a public improvement.  
 
G. One outside swim lane shall be kept open at all times during Swim Team 
practice to allow Patrons to use the Competition Pool.  For the 2024 swim season, 
Licensee may use only four (4) swim lanes of the Competition Pool unless 
otherwise authorized by District.   
 
H. Licensee’s use of the Competition Pool shall be subject to the policies and 
regulations of the District, including any existing or future policies or plans 
developed in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency. 
 
I. The parties acknowledge that the District shall have the right to 
temporarily or permanently close the Competition Pool, or make any other 
modifications to the operation of the Competition Pool at any time due to public 
health concerns or as directed by Executive Order, or state or federal regulations, 
directives or guidance.   
 



 

3 

J. At the end of the swim season, on or about _______, 2024, Licensee shall 
contribute Five Dollars ($5.00) per swimmer to the District to offset additional 
expenses incurred by the District associated with the Swim Team’s use of the 
Competition Pool and associated facilities. 
 
K. One or more members of The District’s amenity staff, in the District’s sole 
discretion, shall be available to assist with the opening of the Amenity Facility on 
meets days. 
 
L. Licensee shall provide an adult representative at all swim meets for the 
duration of the meet to serve as a parking attendant to ensure compliance with the 
District’s rules governing parking.   
 

3. WAIVER AND RELEASE.   Each participant, and in the case of a participant under 
18 years of age, each participant’s parent or legal guardian, in any event or activity of the Swim 
Team shall execute a waiver and release in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 
4. SWIM TEAM PARTICIPATION AND CAP.  The parties acknowledge that the Swim 

Team provides recreational opportunities for the children residing within the District which is the 
basis for permission to use the Competition Pool.  While nothing prohibits a non-resident from 
being a member of the Swim Team, registration on the Swim Team shall be closed to non-
residents of the District once the Swim Team has one hundred (100) participants, but shall 
continue to be open to District residents.         

 
5. TERM.  The term of the License shall be from ________, 2024 through 

__________, 2024, unless terminated or revoked pursuant to Paragraph 6, below.  The parties 
may renew the License for up to three (3) additional swim seasons in 2025, 2026 and 2027, at 
terms and conditions agreed to by the parties.   

 
6. SUSPENSION, REVOCATION AND TERMINATION.  The District and the Licensee 

acknowledge and agree that the license granted herein is a mere privilege and may be 
immediately suspended or revoked, with or without cause, at the sole discretion of the District.  
In the event the District exercises its right to suspend or revoke the license, the District shall 
provide Licensee written notice of the suspension or revocation, which shall be effective 
immediately upon receipt by Licensee of the notice.  Licensee may terminate this License 
Agreement upon written notice to the District.  Licensee shall have no claim whatsoever against 
the District for monetary damages, specific performance, or any other type of relief as a result of 
the District suspending or revoking the License.  

 
7. PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT.  Licensee represents that it is qualified to operate a 

swim team and to provide certified, trained and qualified coaches.  Licensee further represents 
that its coaches are certified as provided in s. 514.071, Florida Statues.  Licensee shall maintain 
all required licenses and certifications in effect and shall at all times exercise sound professional 
judgment, including taking precautions for the safety of its participants and employees.  All 
minors participating in the Swim Team shall only be with the written consent of a parent or 



 

4 

guardian.  The District shall in no way be responsible for the safety of any of Licensee’s 
employees, swim team members, guest, invitees, agents or students.  Any and all waivers signed 
by Licensee’s swimmers shall acknowledge the fact that the District is not responsible for the 
safety of Licensee’s employees, swim team members, guest, invitees, agents or students and 
waive all claims, demands, losses, damages, liabilities, and expenses, and all suits, actions and 
judicial decrees arising from personal injury, death, or property damage resulting in any manner 
whatsoever from use of the License by Licensee.  Licensee shall remain an active Florida 
corporation in good standing during the term of this License.   

 
8. CAPACITY OF POOL.  Licensee shall determine the size of each individual swim 

team and the appropriate ratio of its participants to coaches, provided, however, that Licensee 
shall provide the expected number of swim team participants to the District’s amenity manager 
(“Manager”) and cooperate in good faith with the Manager to ensure that pool capacity is not 
exceeded, as may be modified at the Manager’s discretion in response to the COVID-19 public 
health emergency. 

 
9. INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY.  Licensee shall acquire and maintain general 

commercial liability insurance coverage acceptable to the District in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, which shall include all claims and losses that may relate in any 
manner whatsoever to use of the License by Licensee, its employees, swim team members, 
agents, students, guests or invitees.   The District and its supervisors, staff and agents shall be 
named as additional insureds on such policy.   Licensee shall provide continuous proof of such 
insurance coverage to the District. Licensee hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the 
District harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, damages, liabilities, and 
expenses, and all suits, actions and judicial decrees (including, without limitation, costs and 
reasonable attorneys’ fees for the District’s legal counsel of choice, whether at trial or on 
appeal), arising from personal injury, death, or property damage resulting in any manner 
whatsoever from use of the License by Licensee, its employees, swim team members, agents, 
participants, guests or invitees.  Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of the District's 
sovereign immunity or limits of liability beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or 
limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, 
Florida Statutes or other statute.  The provisions of this Paragraph 9 shall survive suspension or 
revocation of the License or termination of this License Agreement. 

 
10. NOTICES.  Any notice, request, demand or other communication (“Notice”) given 

by either party to the other shall be deemed to have been properly sent or given when delivered 
by hand or when sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, by facsimile transmission or by 
overnight courier or delivery service.  Counsel for each party may accept or deliver Notice on 
behalf of their respective clients.  Upon execution of this License, the parties shall exchange 
addresses, phone and fax numbers where Notices may be provided.  Any changes to this 
information shall promptly be provided to the other party.    

 
11. CARE OF PROPERTY.  Licensee agrees to use all due care to protect the property 

of the District, its Patrons and guests from damage.  Licensee shall assume responsibility for any 
and all damage to any real or personal property of the District or any third parties as a result of 



 

5 

the Licensee’s use of the Competition Pool under this License Agreement.  Licensee shall repair 
any damage resulting from its operations under this License Agreement within twenty-four (24) 
hours.  Any such repairs shall be at Licensee’s sole expense, unless otherwise agreed, in writing, 
by the District. 
 

12. CONTROLLING LAW; VENUE; REMEDIES. This License Agreement and the 
provisions contained herein shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws 
of the State of Florida.  The parties agree that venue for any action arising hereunder shall be in a 
court of appropriate jurisdiction in Duval County, Florida.  The parties further agree that in 
addition to any other remedies or damages available, injunctive relief may also be appropriate to 
enforce the terms of the License. 
 

13. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this License Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions 
of this License Agreement, or any part of this License Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 

 
14. NON TRANSFER.  The License shall be for the sole use by Licensee and shall not 

be assigned or transferred without the prior written consent of the District in its sole discretion.  
A transfer or assignment of all or any part of the License shall cause the License to become 
voidable, in the sole discretion of the District. 

 
15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This is the entire Agreement of the parties and may not be 

amended except in writing signed by both parties. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this License Agreement the day and year first 

written above. 
 
Attest:      BARTRAM SPRINGS 
      COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
_____________________________  _________________________________________ 
Secretary     Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
Witness:     BARTRAM BARRACUDAS SWIM TEAM 
 
 
_____________________________  __________________________________________ 
Signature      
      By:_______________________________________ 
_____________________________  Its:_______________________________________ 
Print Name of Witness 
 
Exhibit A: Schedule of Swim Team Practices 
Exhibit B: Waiver and Release 



 

6 

 
Exhibit A 

Swim Practice Schedule 
 

 
 
Swim Team practices shall take place on Tuesdays, Wednesdays, Thursdays and Fridays from 
7:30 a.m. to 11:00 a.m., starting on June 16, 2020, and concluding on July 24, 2020,   

 



 

 

Exhibit B 
Waiver and Release 

 
I, ____________________________________, on behalf of myself, my personal representatives, my 
minor children and my heirs hereby voluntarily agree to indemnify, defend, release, hold harmless, and 
forever discharge the Aberdeen Community Development District (the “District”), and its present, former, 
and future supervisors, staff, officers, employees, representatives, agents and contractors from any and all 
liability, claims, lawsuits, actions, suits or demands, whether known or unknown, in law or equity, for any 
and all loss, injury, damage, theft, real or personal property damage, expenses (including attorney’s fees, 
costs and other expenses for investigation and defense and in connection with, among other proceedings, 
alternative dispute resolution, trial court, and appellate proceedings), and harm of any kind or nature 
arising out of, or in connection with, my children’s and my guests’ use of the facilities and lands owned 
by the District in connection with the Bartram Barracudas Swim Team, including any and all on-site or 
off-site activities related to the Bartram Barracudas Swim Team, and any transportation to and from such 
activities.  I expressly acknowledge that I assume all risk for any and all injuries and illness that may 
result from my, my children’s and my guests’ participation in any and all of these activities, including but 
not limited to any injuries sustained by me, my children and my guests.  Without limiting the foregoing, I 
hereby acknowledge and agree that the District will not in any way supervise or oversee the activities 
occurring on the District’s property in connection with the Bartram Barracudas Swim Team.  This Waiver 
and Release is binding upon me, my children, my guests, my heirs, executors, legal representatives, and 
successors.  The provisions of this Waiver and Release will continue in full force and effect even after the 
conclusion of my use of the District’s property.  The provisions of this waiver of liability may be waived, 
altered or amended or repealed, in whole or in part, only upon the prior written consent of the District.  
 
I understand that this document is intended to be as broad and inclusive as permitted by the laws of the 
State of Florida. I further understand that nothing in this waiver and release shall constitute or be 
construed as a waiver of the District's limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes 
or other statute or law. I agree that if any portion of this waiver and release is deemed invalid, that the 
remainder will remain in full force and effect. 
 

I CERTIFY THAT I HAVE READ THIS DOCUMENT, AND I FULLY 
UNDERSTAND ITS CONTENT AND FURTHER UNDERSTAND THAT BY 
SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT THAT I AM WAIVING CERTAIN LEGAL 
RIGHTS AND REMEDIES. I AM AWARE THAT THIS IS A RELEASE OF 
LIABILITY AND A CONTRACT AND I SIGN IT OF MY OWN FREE WILL.  I 
UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING BELOW, SUCH WAIVER AND RELEASE, 
INCLUDING ALL OF THE TERMS IN THE PRECEDING PARAGRAPHS, 
SHALL APPLY EACH AND EVERY TIME I, MY CHILD OR MY GUEST 
UTILIZE THE DISTRICT’S FACILITIES OR LANDS. 

 
            
Name       Mailing Address 
            
Signature      Telephone Number 
            
       Date 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



1 
4893-9384-0032.1  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND MATTHEWS DESIGN GROUP, LLC dba 

MATTHEWS | DCCM FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 29th day of January, 2024, 
by and between: 
 

BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated in Duval County, Florida, with a mailing address of 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”); and 
 
MATTHEWS DESIGN GROUP, LLC dba MATTHEWS | DCCM a Florida limited 
liability company, with a mailing address of 7 Waldo Street, St. Augustine, Florida 
32084 ("Engineer").  

 
 RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established 
pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 
190, Florida Statutes, (the "Act"), as amended; and; 

WHEREAS, the District is authorized to plan, finance, construct, install, acquire and/or 
maintain improvements, facilities and services in conjunction with the development of the lands 
within the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 190.033 287.055, Florida Statutes, the District solicited 
statements of qualification from qualified firms to provide professional engineering services on a 
continuing basis; and 

WHEREAS, Engineer submitted a statement of qualification to serve in this capacity; and 

WHEREAS, the District's Board of Supervisors ranked Engineer as the most qualified 
firm to provide professional engineering services for the District on a continuing basis and 
authorized the negotiation of a contract pursuant to Section 287.055, Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the District intends to employ Engineer to perform engineering, construction 
administration, environmental management and permitting, financial and economic studies, as 
defined by a separate work authorization or work authorizations; and 

WHEREAS, the Engineer shall serve as the District's professional representative in each 
service or project to which this Agreement applies and will give consultation and advice to the 
District during performance of these services. 

   
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, 

the acts and deeds to be performed by the parties and the payments by the District to the Engineer 
of the sums of money herein specified, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows: 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



2 
4893-9384-0032.1  

ARTICLE 1.  RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and correct and by this 
reference are incorporated herein and form a material part of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. The Engineer will provide general engineering services, including: 

1. Preparation of any necessary reports and attendance at meetings of the 
District's Board of Supervisors. 

2. Providing professional engineering services including but not limited to 
review and execution of documents under the District's Trust Indentures and 
monitoring of District projects. Performance of any other duties related to 
the provision of infrastructure and services as requested by the Board, 
District Manager, or District Counsel. 

3. Any other items requested by the Board of Supervisors. 

B. Engineer shall, when authorized by the Board, provide general services related to 
construction of any District projects including, but not limited to: 

1. Periodic visits to the site, or full time construction management of District 
projects, as directed by the District. 

2. Processing of contractor's pay estimates. 
3. Preparation of, and/or assistance with the preparation of, work 

authorizations, requisitions, change orders and acquisitions for review by the 
District Manager, District Counsel and the Board. 

4. Final inspection and requested certificates for construction including the 
final certificate of construction. 

5. Consultation and advice during construction, including performing all roles 
and actions required of any construction contract between District and any 
contractor(s) in which Engineer is named as owner's representative or 
"Engineer." 

6. Any other activity related to construction as authorized by the Board. 

C. With respect to maintenance of the facilities, Engineer shall render such services 
as authorized by the Board. 

ARTICLE 3.  METHOD OF AUTHORIZATION. Each service or project shall be authorized 
in writing by the District. The written authorization shall be incorporated in a work authorization 
which shall include the scope of work, compensation, project schedule, and special provisions or 
conditions specific to the service or project being authorized ("Work Authorization"). 
Authorization of services or projects under the contract shall be at the sole option of the District. 

ARTICLE 4. COMPENSATION. It is understood and agreed that the payment of 
compensation for services under this Agreement shall be stipulated in each Work Authorization. 
One of the following methods will be utilized: 
 

A.  Lump Sum Amount - The District and Engineer shall mutually agree to a lump sum 
amount for the services to be rendered payable monthly in direct proportion to the work 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



3 
4893-9384-0032.1  

accomplished. For any lump-sum or cost-plus-a-fixed-fee professional service contract 
over the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY 
FOUR, the District shall require the Engineer to execute a truth-in-negotiation certificate 
stating that wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are 
accurate, complete, and current at the time of contracting. The price for any lump sum 
Work Authorization, and any additions thereto, will be adjusted to exclude any significant 
sums by which the District determines the Work Authorization was increased due to 
inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit costs. All such 
adjustments must be made within one (1) year following the completion of the work 
contemplated by the lump sum Work Authorization. 

B. Hourly Personnel Rates - For services or projects where scope of services is not 
clearly defined, or recurring services or other projects where the District desires to use the 
hourly compensation rates outlined in Schedule A attached hereto. The District and 
Engineer may agree to a "not to exceed" amount when utilizing hourly personnel rates for 
a specific work authorization. 

ARTICLE 5. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES. Reimbursable expenses consist of actual 
expenditures made by Engineer, its employees, or its consultants in the interest of the 
project for the incidental expenses as listed as follows: 

A. Expenses of transportation and living when traveling in connection with a project, 
for long distance phone calls and telegrams, and fees paid for securing approval of 
authorities having jurisdiction over the project. All expenditures shall be made in 
accordance with Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, and with the District's travel policy. 

B. Expense of reproduction, postage and handling of drawings and specifications. 

ARTICLE 6. TERM OF CONTRACT. It is understood and agreed that this Agreement is for 
engineering services. It is further understood and agreed that the term of this Agreement will be 
from the time of execution of this Agreement until terminated pursuant to Article 22. 

ARTICLE 7. SPECIAL CONSULTANTS. When authorized in writing by the District, 
additional special consulting services may be utilized by Engineer and paid for on a cost basis. 

 
ARTICLE 8. BOOKS AND RECORDS. Engineer shall maintain comprehensive books and 

records relating to any services performed under this Agreement, which shall be retained by 
Engineer for a period of at least four (4) years from and after completion of any services hereunder, 
or such further time as required under Florida's public records law. The District, or its authorized 
representative, shall have the right to audit such books and records at all reasonable times upon 
prior notice to Engineer. 

 
ARTICLE 9. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 
 
A. All rights in and title to all plans, drawings, specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, 
sketches, models, programs, software, creation, inventions, reports, or other tangible work 
product originally developed by Engineer pursuant to this Agreement (the "Work Product") 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



4 
4893-9384-0032.1  

shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the District when developed and shall 
be considered work for hire. 

B. The Engineer shall deliver all Work Product to the District upon completion thereof 
unless it is necessary for Engineer in the District's sole discretion, to retain possession for a 
longer period of time. Upon early termination of Engineer's services hereunder, Engineer shall 
deliver all such Work Product whether complete or not. The District shall have all rights to use 
any and all Work Product. Engineer shall retain copies of the Work Product for its permanent 
records, provided the Work Product is not used without the District's prior express written 
consent. Engineer agrees not to recreate any Work Product contemplated by this Agreement, 
or portions thereof, which if constructed or otherwise materialized, would be reasonably 
identifiable with the Project. If said Work Product is used by the District for any purpose other 
than that purpose which is intended by this Agreement, the District shall indemnify Engineer 
from any and all claims and liabilities which may result from such re-use, in the event Engineer 
does not consent to such use. 

C. The District exclusively retains all manufacturing rights to all materials or designs 
developed under this Agreement. To the extent the services performed under this Agreement 
produce or include copyrightable or patentable materials or designs, such materials or designs 
are work made for hire for the District as the author, creator, or inventor thereof upon creation, 
and the District shall have all rights therein including, without limitation, the right of 
reproduction, with respect to such work. Engineer hereby assigns to the District any and all 
rights Engineer may have including, without limitation, the copyright, with respect to such 
work. The Engineer acknowledges that the District is the motivating factor for, and for the 
purpose of copyright or patent, has the right to direct and supervise the preparation of such 
copyrightable or patentable materials or designs. 

ARTICLE 10. ACCOUNTING RECORDS. Records of Engineer pertaining to the services 
provided hereunder shall be kept on a basis of generally accepted accounting principles and shall be 
available to the District or its authorized representative for observation or audit at mutually agreeable 
times. 

ARTICLE 11. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Engineer and District agree that Engineer is and 
shall remain at all times an independent contractor and shall not in any way claim or be considered an 
employee of the District. Engineer shall not have authority to hire persons as employees of the District. 

ARTICLE 12. REUSE OF DOCUMENTS. All documents including drawings and specifications 
furnished by Engineer pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service. They are not intended or 
represented to be suitable for reuse by District or others on extensions of the work for which they were 
provided or on any other project. Any reuse without specific written consent by Engineer will be at the 
District's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer. All documents including 
drawings, plans and specifications furnished by Engineer to the District are subject to reuse in 
accordance with Section 287.055(10), Florida Statutes. 

ARTICLE 13. ESTIMATE OF COST. Since Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, 
materials or equipment or over a contractor's(s') methods of determining prices, or over 
competitive bidding or market conditions, his opinions of probable cost provided as a service 
hereunder are to be made on the basis of his experience and qualifications and represent his best 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



5 
4893-9384-0032.1  

judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry, but Engineer cannot and 
does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or the construction costs will not vary from opinions of 
probable cost prepared by him. If the District wishes greater assurance as to the construction costs, 
it shall employ an independent cost estimator at its own expense. Services to modify approved 
documents to bring the construction cost within any limitation established by the District will be 
considered additional services and justify additional fees. 

ARTICLE 14. INSURANCE. Engineer shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance during 
the performance of its services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than the 
following: 

Workers' Compensation Statutory 

General Liability 
Bodily Injury 
(including 
Contractual) Property 
Damage (including 
Contractual) 

$ 1,000,000/$2,000,000 

$1,000,000/$2,000,000 
 

Automobile Liability Combined Single Limit $500,000 
Bodily Injury / Property Damage 

Professional Liability for 
Errors and Omissions $1,000,000 

The District, its officers, supervisors, agents, staff, and representatives shall be named as 
additional insured parties (except on Professional Liability for Errors and Omissions). The 
Engineer shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with 
the requirements of this Article. No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides 
that any change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as certified, 
shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice of cancellation to the District. 
Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the 
state of Florida. 

ARTICLE 15. CONTINGENT FEE. Engineer warrants that it has not employed or retained 
any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Engineer, to solicit 
or secure this Agreement and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, 
corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Engineer, 
any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the 
award or making of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 16. AUDIT. Engineer agrees that the District or any of its duly authorized 

representatives shall, until the expiration of three years after expenditure of funds under this 
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine any books, documents, papers, and records of 
the Engineer involving transactions related to the Agreement. The Engineer agrees that payment 
made under the Agreement shall be subject to reduction for amounts charged thereto that are found 
on the basis of audit examination not to constitute allowable costs. All required records shall be 
maintained until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are resolved, or three 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



6 
4893-9384-0032.1  

years after completion of all work under the Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 17. INDEMNIFICATION. Engineer shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 

District, and the District's officers, employees and staff, wholly from liabilities, damages, losses, 
and costs of any kind, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, which may come 
against the District and the District's officers, employees, and staff to the extent caused by 
negligent, reckless, or intentionally wrongful acts or omissions by the Engineer or persons 
employed or utilized by Engineer in the course of any work done in connection with any of the 
matters set out in this Agreement. Engineer agrees and covenants that nothing herein shall 
constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's sovereign immunity pursuant to Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes, or any other statute or law. 

 
ARTICLE 18. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. Engineer understands and 

agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement 
may be public records, and, accordingly, Engineer agrees to comply with all applicable provisions 
of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida 
Statutes. Engineer acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is 
Jim Oliver ("Public Records Custodian"). Among other requirements and to the extent applicable 
by law, the Engineer shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform 
the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the 
requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time 
period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure 
that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term 
and following the contract term if the Engineer does not transfer the records to the Public Records 
Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no 
cost, all public records in Engineer's possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all 
applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public 
records are transferred by the Engineer, the Engineer shall destroy any duplicate public records 
that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All 
records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with 
Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

 
IF ENGINEER HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
ENGINEER'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS CUSTODIAN AT PH: (904) 940-5850, 
JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM OR  475  WEST  TOWNPLACE, 
SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092.  

ARTICLE 19. EMPLOYMENT VERIFICATION. Engineer agrees that it shall bear the 
responsibility for verifying the employment status, under the Immigration Reform and Control Act 
of 1986, of all persons it employs in the performance of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 20. CONTROLLING LAW; JURISDICTION AND VENUE. Engineer and the District 
agree that this Agreement shall be controlled and governed by the laws of the State of Florida. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625

mailto:HMCGAFFNEY@GMSNF.COM


7 
4893-9384-0032.1 

Jurisdiction and venue for any proceeding with respect to this Agreement shall be in Duval County, 
Florida. 

ARTICLE 21. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Engineer shall assign, sublet, or 
transfer any rights under or interest in this Agreement without the express written consent of the 
other. Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the Engineer from employing such independent 
professional associates and consultants as Engineer deems appropriate, pursuant to the terms of 
this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 22. TERMINATION. The District may terminate this Agreement for cause 
immediately upon notice to Engineer. The District or the Engineer may terminate this Agreement 
without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice. At such time as the Engineer receives 
notification of the intent of the District to terminate the contract, the Engineer shall not perform 
any further services unless directed to do so in writing by the District. In the event of any 
termination or breach of any kind, the Engineer shall not be entitled to consequential or other 
damages of any kind (including but not limited to lost profits), but instead the Engineer's sole 
remedy will be to recover payment for services rendered to the date of the notice of termination, 
subject to any offsets. 

ARTICLE 23. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, transmitted by electronic 
mail (e-mail) and mailed by First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the 
parties, as follows: 

A. If to District: Bartram Springs Community Development 
District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
Attn:  District Manager 

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP 

B. If to the Contractor:

107 West College Avenue 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attn: District Counsel 

Matthews | DCCM
7 Waldo Street 
St. Augustine, Florida 32084 
Attn: _____________________ 

 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of 
delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any time 
for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the 
Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and legal 
holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days. Counsel 
for the District and counsel for Engineer may deliver Notice on behalf of District and Engineer, 
respectively. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the 

Alex Acree, PE

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



8 
4893-9384-0032.1  

other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 

 
ARTICLE 24. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES. In the event either party is required to 

enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover from the other party all costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees. 

 
ARTICLE 25. COMPLIANCE WITH PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS. In performing its 

obligations under this Agreement, the Engineer and each of its agents, servants, employees or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by Engineer, shall maintain the highest standard of care, 
skill, diligence and professional competency for such work and/or services. Any designs, 
drawings, reports or specifications prepared or furnished by the Engineer that contain errors, 
conflicts or omissions will be promptly corrected by Engineer at no cost to the District. 
 

ARTICLE 26. ACCEPTANCE. Acceptance of this Agreement is indicated by the signature 
of the authorized representative of the District and the Engineer in the spaces provided below.       
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of this page left intentionally blank] 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



9 
4893-9384-0032.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement on the day and 
year first written above. 

Attest:  BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson / Vice Chairperson,  

Board of Supervisors 

MATTHEWS DESIGN GROUP, LLC 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Witness By: ________________________________ 

Its: ________________________________ 

Exhibit A: Rate Schedule 

Rob A. Matthews III, PE
President/CEO

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



10 
4893-9384-0032.1 

Exhibit A 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



 

 

  

Personnel Classification Rate Range

Principal $365.00

VP $275.00 - $300.00

Division Lead $260.00 - $285.00

Program Manager $240.00 - $265.00

Senior Professional Engineer $200.00 - $270.00

Senior Planner $210.00 - $230.00

Senior Landscape Architect $220.00 - $260.00

Senior Construction Inspector $195.00 - $210.00

Professional Engineer $230.00 - $240.00

Project Engineer $160.00 - $190.00

Planner $160.00 - $190.00

Landscape Architect $170.00 - $190.00

Construction Inspector $170.00 - $180.00

Senior CAD Designer and Senior Engineering Tech $180.00 - $200.00

Senior Landscape Designer $180.00 - $200.00

CAD Designer and Engineering Tech $130.00 - $170.00

PRINCIPAL/SENIOR LEADS

SENIOR PROFESSIONAL

PROFESSIONAL

DESIGNER

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



 

Ver 061422 

 

  

 

 

 

Controller $150.00 - $200.00

Graphic Designer $100.00 - $140.00

Senior Graphic Designer $140.00 - $180.00

Project Administrator and Project Coordinator $95.00 -   $120.00

Project Manager, Architect $200.00 - $255.00

Project Architect $170.00 - $190.00

Project Coordinator, Architect $140.00 - $170.00

Intern Architect $115.00 - $140.00

CA, Architect $220.00 - $240.00

Specifications Writer $220.00 - $240.00

Project Director, Survey $215.00 - $245.00

Senior Surveyor $170.00 - $200.00

Senior GIS Enterprise Administrator $170.00 - $200.00

Project Surveyor $155.00 - $185.00

Project GIS Developer, Survey $155.00 - $185.00

Staff Surveyor $135.00 - $165.00

Staff GIS Analyst $135.00 - $165.00

Four Man Field Crew $215.00 - $245.00

Three Man Field Crew $195.00 - $215.00

Two Man Field Crew $170.00 - $200.00

One Man Field Crew $150.00 - $180.00

One Man Crew (GPS/RTK) $200.00 - $230.00

Two Man Crew (GPS/RTK) $215.00 - $245.00

CADD Technician, Survey $115.00 - $145.00

GIS Technician $115.00 - $145.00

Field Technician, Survey  $95.00 - $125.00

SURVEYING

ARCHITECTURE

SUPPORT STAFF

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5C8B6AFB-3B2E-4392-B183-BFCD48EF2625



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2024-04 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING OFFICERS OF THE 
BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT  
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Bartram Springs Community Development District 
at a regular business meeting held on March 11, 2024 desires to elect the below recited persons to the 
offices specified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE BARTRAM SPRINGS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 1.  The following persons were elected to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
   Andrew Walden  Chairman 
   Derri Young  Vice-Chairman  
   James Oliver  Secretary 
   James Oliver  Treasurer 
   Marilee Giles  Assistant Treasurer  
   Howard McGaffney  

   Daniel Laughlin  
   Darrin Mossing  
   Patti Powers  
   Sharyn Henning  
   Marilee Giles  Assistant Secretary(s) 
   Howard McGaffney  

   Daniel Laughlin   
   Darrin Mossing  
   Lacy Reynolds   
   Taner Nierengarten   
   Stephanie McKinney   
  PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 11TH DAY OF MARCH, 2024. 
 
 
   
 Chairman / Vice Chairman 
 
   
 Secretary / Assistant Secretary 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



General Manager’s Report 

March 4, 2024 

 
Compiled by Sue O’Lear, Stephanie Taylor, Fred 
Atwood 

 

TRANSITION MEETING SUMMARY: On Tuesday, February 27th teams from Vesta Property 
Services and GMS/RMS (along with Board Chairman Andrew Walden) to discuss the 
specifics of Transition.  

• Sue O’Lear submitted a comprehensive transition excel workbook containing 
information/contacts for Lifestyle, Amenity/Facilities, Field Operations and 
Programs as well as a list of all passwords for those transitioning into the property.  

• We answered questions from GMS/RMS regarding currently scheduled events 
(specifically Food Truck Fridays, the Lucky Run, the Pickleball Clinic, the 
Presidential Preference election, and Spring Fling) and ownership of District 
property and answered questions from Supervisor Walden regarding some resident 
comments on Facebook regarding rentals at the Athletic fields.  

• Friday, March 8 was selected as the date for training, and the incoming company 
expressed their intention to take over with their staff after the Board meeting on 
Monday, March 11.  

o We plan to have a full leadership team onsite March 8 to facilitate the 
transition and to do a complete walk through of the property. We will keep 
our staff in place through the weekend, then beginning Monday, March 11 we 
will have management onsite as support for GMS/RMS employees through 
our last day, March 14th. 

LIFESTYLE: Though Vesta will not be onsite for event execution, we did maintain planning 
for all March events: 

Food Truck Friday - Vesta spoke with Easy Truckin (the 
Food Truck scheduler from our preferred vendor list) about 
the transition and they are happy to continue to work with 
RMS. Information was provided in the transition workbook. 

 

 



The Bartram Springs Lucky Run 5K – Sunday March 17th. 
Vesta notified the vendor of the change in management 
company and provided RMS with all necessary contact 
information as well as the staffing execution plan for the 
event. 

 

2024 Presidential Preference Primary – Tuesday, March 19, 
2024. Details for polling at Bartram Springs were provided 
to the incoming company and discussed at the Transition 
Meeting on February 27th. The signed agreement for all 3 
elections for 2024 is in the electronic file on the desktop of 

the computer in the General Manager’s office. 

Pickleball Clinic – Saturday March 23. All details for 
execution, contact information for the instructor, and 
access to the registration list was provided to RMS. There 
is a fee collected for this event, and those fees are 
historically turned in to the District to offset the cost of the 
event.  

Spring Fling – Saturday March 30. All details for event 
execution, vendor contact information, and access to the 
Egg Hunt Registration Lists were provided to RMS in the 
transition workbook and discussed at the meeting. 
Registration for the Egg Hunt opened March 1st and was 
eblasted to the community by Vesta.  

 

PROGRAMS: A comprehensive list of all programming vendors was provided in the 
workbook, with updated agreements left in the electronic file on the General Manager 
computer. These vendors include: Champion Swim Schools, Bartram Barracudas, Happy 
Hoops, Kickstart (AKA Soccer Shots), Micki Woodford (fitness), Ron White (tennis), 
Adrienne Williams (Yoga), Yeganeh Sheikh (yoga), and Kathy Ramirez (Kat Dance). Contact 
information was left for Ben Rowan (adult swim) though no agreement has been written for 
the 2024 season. 

All Vesta owned camp supplies were removed from the supply closet and are being 
relocated to other properties.  

FACILITIES: 

• Rentals:  



o Vesta has continued to take reservations for Private Rentals per the standard 
operating procedure, minus requiring the check made out to Vesta for extra 
staffing.  

o Per RMS request, we provided copies of the rental forms for their review of 
policy and procedure. 

• Commercial Fitness: Repairs and pad replacements were completed in the fitness 
facility on February 27th. Our representative states that delivery of the new 
equipment may still be 2 weeks out, a much longer timeline than originally 
communicated for the pieces. He communicated that he would waive any fee for 
removal of the old equipment when they come to place the 2 new pieces. 
Information regarding the possible repair or replacement of the Octane recumbent 
elliptical , along with all contact information, and the inventory of current 
equipment with serial numbers is included in the electronic file left on the General 
Manager computer.  

• Janitorial: Per RMS request, contact information for the janitorial service has been 
provided. 

• Cameras: Work began on a camera installation for the Social Hall patio area. 
Contact information and status on the project has been left for the incoming 
company. 

• Badge System: Training documents have been provided, and new staff will have the 
opportunity to sit with Stephanie Taylor for training on the badge system. There is a 
fresh supply of access cards in the office, as well as 2024 guest punch cards. All 
contact information for the company has been provided in the workbook. 

• Remaining Projects: 
o Ice Machine: The new ice machine was received and installed February 15th. 
o Deck Chairs: Sample deck chairs were received and remain in the front 

office for review. 

MAINTENANCE AND FIELD OPERATIONS: Weekly updates have been provided to the 
board on the status of all ongoing Maintenance and Field Operations projects, including: 

• Front Entry Fountains: Fred has monitored the water level on the inbound fountain, 
and the history of the issues with that fountain were discussed with RMS at the 
transition meeting.  

• Dog Park Fence Curling: A temporary measure was employed to straighten out the 
curling at the bottom of some fencing in the Dog Park. RMS was made aware of the 
issue through the weekly update process.  

• Lap Pool Vacuum Pump: Work was completed on this issue and the pool reopened 
on 2/27/24.  



• Veterans Park Shade Structure Failure: As of this writing we have not received an 
update regarding the replacement of the damaged shade structure down at 
Veteran’s Park. All contact information has been provided to RMS. 

• Amenity Kids Park Shade Structure: As of this writing we are still awaiting an 
update on installation of the playground shade structure for the Amenity Center 
park. All contact information for this vendor has been provided. 

• Lake Fountain: As updated, Lake Doctors is awaiting a part that will allow the use of 
premium nozzles. Terry Glinn has been in contact/met with this vendor, so that 
contact has been handed off. 

• Irrigation Repairs: Fred has coordinated with Bryan Wakes regarding irrigation 
repairs around the Amenity Center. Terry Glinn has also been in contact with 
VerdeGo regarding landscape.  

Cleanup/Spring Break Preparation Projects: Fred and Tom continue to work on cleaning 
and maintenance projects in preparation for Spring Break: 

Grills: New Covers, Heat Plates replaced 

               
                    Covers            Heat Plates Before   Heat Plates After 

Playgrounds: Safety Checks, Swing Mats replaced, and mulch added, continuing to look 
for climbing wall replacement parts 

                                             
Safety Check/Pins Pounded In             Swing Mats Replaced/Mulch Added 



Pools: All coffins cleaned 

 

Sauna: Drywall repaired  

         
        Drywall Before       Drywall After 

Pool Gazebos: Overspray Cleaned 

             
    Overspray Before               Overspray After 
 
Shop: Cleaned and Reorganized 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



  

3/11/2024 

 
  

Bartram Springs 
Community Development District 
Amenity Management & Field Operations Report 

Terry Glynn 
GENERAL MANAGER 
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
 

Leah Tincher 
AMENITY MANAGER  
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
 
Rich Whetsel 
FIELD OPERATIONS MANAGER 
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
 
 

 
 



Bartram Springs Amenity & Field Operations Report – GMS 2024 1 

Bartram Springs 
Community Development District 

 
Amenity Management & Field Operations Report 

March 11, 2024 
 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Terry Glynn 
  General Manager 
 

Leah Tincher 
  Amenity Manager 
 

Rich Whetsel 
  Field Operations Manager 
 
 
RE: Bartram Springs Amenity Management & Field Operations Report  
 
 

The following is a summary of items related to the Amenity Management, 
Field Operations & Maintenance of Bartram Springs CDD.  



Bartram Springs Amenity & Field Operations Report – GMS 2024 2 

Special Events 

 
• GMS looks forward to working with the Bartram Springs CDD Board of 

Supervisors and residents of the community on hosting events desired 
in this district   
 

• Upcoming Events: 
o March 15th – GMS Welcome Event 4-6pm  
o March 17th  – The Lucky 5K Run 8:30am 
o March 23rd – Pickleball Clinic 1-3pm 
o March 30th  – Spring Fling 12-3pm 
o Summer Camp June 10th-August 9th  
o Food Trucks – Every Friday Night 5-8pm 

 
 

• Resident Suggestions: 
o Kids Camp – Spring & Winter Break 
o Return of Monthly Kids Activity Night 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Communication 

 
• Email blast updates will be sent out regularly to the community – 

Bartramspringsmanager@gmsnf.com   
• Food trucks will be announced weekly  
• Newsletters will be published each month  

 

 
 
 



Bartram Springs Amenity & Field Operations Report – GMS 2024 3 

 



Action Items Reported on by: 3/11/24 Terry Glynn
Rich Whetsel 

Date 
Completed Initials Comments

Boree Canvas - 02/23 new shade ripped 
In Progress 

Pool - Replace broken tiles 

Action Items Report
Bartram Springs CDD

Action Items

Dog Park Fence Down/Holes
Athletic Fields - Check Broken 
Irrigation
Athletic Fields - Clean up dead, 
dying, loose sod and material
Athletic Fields - Recut drainage 
swale along North/South of soccer 
field 
Athletic Fields - Find drain to lake 
east side 

Athletic Fields - Replace broken 
benches 
Athletic Fields - address root trip 
hazards 
Entrance Fountain - Clean fountain 
water features 
Add soil/plant material to Bartram 
Springs signs 
Trim palms at entry 

Roof Replacement

Veteran Park Shade Structure 
Failure

Natural area clean up 



Bartram Springs Amenity & Field Operations Report – GMS 2024 4 

 

 
 
 
 
For any questions or comments regarding the above 
information please contact: 
 
 
Terry Glynn, General Manager  
TGlynn@gmsnf.com 
 
Leah Tincher, Amenity Manager 
Bartramspringsmanager@gmsnf.com  
 
Rich Whetsel, Field Operations Manager 
Rwhetsel@gmsnf.com 
 
 
 

 

Conclusion 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Bartram	Springs
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
January	31,	2024



1

2-3

4

5

6-7

8

9

10 Check	Register	Summary

Assessment	Receipt	Schedule

Month	to	Month

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Table	of	Contents

Balance	Sheet

General	Fund

Capital	Reserve

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2021



	 General	 Debt	Service	 Capital	Reserve Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets: 	
Cash:
Operating	Account	-	Hancock 17,405$																														 -$																																						 85,066$																														 102,472$																																					
Operating	Account	-	BOA -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 -																																																									
Petty	Cash 200																																								 -																																															 -																																															 200																																																		
Paypal 100																																								 -																																															 -																																															 100																																																		

Assessments	Receivable -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	from	Capital 3,685																																				 -																																															 -																																															 3,685																																														
Due	from	Other 1,137																																				 -																																															 -																																															 1,137																																														
Due	from	General	Fund -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 -																																																									

Investments:
State	Board	of	Administration	(SBA) 4,936																																				 -																																															 90,926																																	 95,861																																											
Custody	US	Bank	Account 1,360,955																										 -																																															 -																																															 1,360,955																																				

Series	2021
Reserve -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 -																																																									
Revenue -																																															 1,250,033																										 -																																															 1,250,033																																				

Prepaid	Expenses 2,489																																				 -																																															 -																																															 2,489																																														
Deposits 720																																								 -																																															 -																																															 720																																																		

Total	Assets 1,391,627$																			 1,250,033$																			 175,992$																								 2,817,651$																												

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 36,350$																														 -$																																						 15,706$																														 52,055$																																								
Accrued	Expenses -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	to	Debt	Service -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	to	General	Fund -																																															 -																																															 3,685$																																	 3,685																																														

Total	Liabilites 36,350$																											 -$																																					 19,391$																											 55,740$																																					

Fund	Balance: 	
Nonspendable:
Deposits 720$																																					 -$																																						 -$																																						 720$																																															

Restricted	for:
Debt	Service	 -																																															 1,250,033																										 -																																															 1,250,033																																				
Capital	Project	 -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 -																																																									

Assigned	for:	
Capital	Reserve	Fund -																																															 -																																															 156,601																														 156,601																																								
Capital	Reserves -																																															 -																																															 -																																															 -																																																									

Unassigned 1,352,067																										 -																																															 -																																															 1,352,067																																				

Total	Fund	Balances 1,355,277$																			 1,250,033$																			 156,601$																								 2,761,911$																												

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 1,391,627$																			 1,250,033$																			 175,992$																								 2,817,651$																												

Bartram	Springs
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
January	31,	2024

1



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	January	31,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	01/31/24 Thru	01/31/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 1,560,531$										 1,501,174$										 1,501,174$										 -$																									
Facility	Income 8,000																						 2,667																						 2,310																						 (357)																								
Program	Sharing	-	ASG 20,000																			 13,177																			 13,177																			 -																																	
Comcast	Revenue	Share 20,000																			 6,667																						 5,667																						 (1,000)																				
Interest/Miscellaneous	Income 6,000																						 2,000																						 10,444																			 8,444																						

Total		Revenues 1,614,531$										 1,525,685$										 $1,532,772 7,087$																			

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 12,000$																	 4,000$																				 4,000$																				 -$																															
PR-FICA 918																										 -	 306																										 306																										 -																																	
Engineering 6,300																						 2,100																						 930																										 1,170																						
Attorney 33,000																			 11,000																			 11,367																			 (367)																								
Annual	Audit 3,250																						 -																																		 -																																		 -																																	
Assessment	Administration 6,500																						 6,500																						 6,500																						 -																																	
Arbitrage	Rebate 600																										 200																										 -																																		 200																										
Trustee	Fees 4,500																						 1,500																						 -																																		 1,500																						
Management	Fees 59,707																			 19,902																			 19,902																			 -																																	
Information	Technology 1,625																						 542																										 542																										 -																																	
Website	Maintenance 1,272																						 424																										 424																										 -																																	
Telephone 800																										 267																										 293																										 (27)																											
Postage	&	Delivery 2,500																						 833																										 192																										 641																										
Insurance	General	Liability/Public	Officials 82,566																			 82,566																			 78,802																			 3,764																						
Printing	&	Binding 2,500																						 833																										 815																										 19																													
Legal	Advertising 2,900																						 967																										 1,220																						 (253)																								
Other	Current	Charges 1,560																						 520																										 695																										 (175)																								
Office	Supplies 350																										 117																										 54																													 63																													
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																										 175																										 175																										 -																																	

Total	General	&	Administrative 223,023$														 132,752$														 126,217$														 6,535$																			

Bartram	Springs

2



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	January	31,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	01/31/24 Thru	01/31/24 Variance

Bartram	Springs

Operations	&	Maintenance

Amenity	Center	Expenditures
Utilities:
Electric 75,000$																	 25,000$																	 20,821$																	 4,179$																			
Water/Irrigation 28,000																			 9,333																						 4,807																						 4,526																						
Cable 11,000																			 3,667																						 4,249																						 (583)																								
Gas 1,800																						 600																										 364																										 236																										
Trash	Removal 10,775																			 3,592																						 3,524																						 68																													
Security:
Security	Monitoring 1,000																						 333																										 280																										 53																													
Access	Cards 1,500																						 -																																		 -																																		 -																																	
Management	Contracts:
Facility	Management 195,154																 65,051																			 65,051																			 -																																	
Pool	Attendants 91,293																			 -																																		 -																																		 -																																	
Field	Management/Administration 87,817																			 29,272																			 29,272																			 -																																	
Pool	Maintenance 30,955																			 10,318																			 10,318																			 -																																	
Janitorial 19,950																			 6,650																						 6,678																						 (28)																											
Gym	Monitor 34,252																			 11,417																			 11,417																			 -																																	
Facility	Maintenance 75,950																			 25,317																			 25,317																			 -																																	
Pool	Chemicals 47,200																			 15,733																			 7,948																						 7,786																						
Mobile	Application 2,500																						 833																										 833																										 -																																	
Repairs	and	Maintenance 78,000																			 26,000																			 42,338																			 (16,338)																	
Special	Events 21,000																			 12,546																			 12,546																			 -																																	
Holiday	Decorations 7,500																						 5,838																						 5,838																						 -																																	
Fitness	Center	Repairs/Supplies 5,000																						 1,667																						 1,188																						 479																										
Office	Supplies 7,000																						 2,333																						 1,466																						 867																										
ASCAP/BMI	Licenses 1,000																						 333																										 -																																		 333																										

Subtotal	Amenity	Center	Expenditures 833,646$														 255,835$														 254,256$														 1,579$																			

Grounds	Maintenance
Landscape	Maintenance 200,322$														 66,774$																	 64,829$																	 1,945$																			
Landscape	Contingency 40,000																			 13,333																			 17,058																			 (3,725)																				
Atheletic	Field 25,250																			 8,417																						 -																																		 8,417																						
Lake	Maintenance 31,667																			 10,556																			 9,089																						 1,467																						
Fountain	Maintenance 1,600																						 533																										 299																										 234																										
Grounds	Maintenance 10,000																			 3,333																						 372																										 2,961																						
Pump	Repairs 5,000																						 1,667																						 1,268																						 399																										
Streetlight	Repairs 3,000																						 1,000																						 96																													 904																										
Irrigation	Repairs 15,000																			 5,000																						 3,844																						 1,156																						
Miscellaneous 1,500																						 500																										 -																																		 500																										
Capital	Reserves	Contributions 240,450																 -																																		 -																																		 -																																	

Subtotal	Grounds	Maintenance 573,789$														 111,113$														 96,855$																	 14,258$																

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 1,407,435$										 366,948$														 351,111$														 15,837$																

Total	Expenditures 1,630,458$										 499,700$														 477,328$														 22,372$																

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (15,927)$															 1,025,985$										 1,055,444$										 29,459$																

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (15,927)$															 1,025,985$										 1,055,444$										 29,459$																

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 15,927$																	 299,834$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 1,355,277$										
3



Bartram	Springs
Community	Development	District

Capital	Reserve	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	January	31,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	01/31/24 Thru	01/31/24 Variance

Revenues
	
Capital	Reserve	Transfer	In 240,450$														 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															
Misc	Income -																																		 -																																	 3,803																						 3,803$																				
Interest 2,000																						 667																										 1,697																						 1,030																						

Total		Revenues 242,450$														 667$																							 5,500$																				 4,833$																				

Expenditures:

Capital	Projects 135,960$														 45,320$																 14,498$																	 30,822$																	
Repairs	and	Maintenance 196,870																 65,623																			 69,838																			 (4,214)																				
Other	Service	Charges 800																										 267																										 -																																		 267																										

Total	Expenditures 333,630$														 111,210$													 84,336$																	 26,874$																	

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (91,180)$															 (78,836)$															

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (91,180)$															 (78,836)$															

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 235,437$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending (91,180)$															 156,601$														

4



Bartram	Springs
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2021

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	January	31,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual

Budget Thru	01/31/24 Thru	01/31/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll	 1,232,157$										 1,185,289$										 1,185,289$										 -$																															
Special	Assessments	-	Prepayments -																																		 -																																		 -																																		 -																																		
Interest	Income 9,000																						 3,000																						 7,006																						 4,006																						

Total		Revenues 1,241,157$										 1,188,289$										 1,192,295$										 4,006$																				

Expenditures:

Interest	-	11/1 130,632$														 130,632$														 130,632$														 -$																															
Interest	-	5/1 130,632																 -																																		 -																																		 -																																		
Principal	-	5/1 975,000																 -																																		 -																																		 -																																		

Total	Expenditures 1,236,264$										 130,632$														 130,632$														 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 4,893$																				 1,057,657$										 1,061,663$										 4,006$																				

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 4,893$																				 1,057,657$										 1,061,663$										 4,006$																				

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 186,059$														 188,370$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 190,953$														 1,250,033$										

5



Bartram	Springs
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Revenues:

Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll -$		 	 234,908$	 			 1,239,629$		 			 26,637$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 1,501,174$									
Facility	Income 830	 590	 -	 890	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 2,310	
Program	Sharing	-	ASG 13,177	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 13,177	
Comcast	Revenue	Share -	 5,667	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 5,667	
Interest/Miscellaneous	Income 3,924	 619	 284	 5,617	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 10,444	

Total		Revenues 17,931$		 			 241,784$		 			 1,239,912$		 			 33,144$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 1,532,772$									

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 1,000$		 			 1,000$		 			 1,000$		 			 1,000$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 4,000$	 			
PR-FICA 77	 77	 77	 77	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 306	
Engineering -	 -	 -	 930	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 930	
Attorney 2,461	 3,970	 4,937	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 11,367	
Annual	Audit -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Assessment	Administration 6,500	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 6,500	
Arbitrage	Rebate -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Dissemination	Agent -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Trustee	Fees -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Management	Fees 4,976	 4,975	 4,976	 4,976	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 19,902	
Information	Technology 135	 136	 135	 135	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 542	
Website	Maintenance 106	 106	 106	 106	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 424	
Telephone 129	 101	 46	 17	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 293	
Postage	&	Delivery 66	 34	 20	 72	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 192	
Insurance	General	Liability/Public	Officials 78,802	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 78,802	
Printing	&	Binding 278	 149	 194	 194	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 815	
Legal	Advertising 140	 469	 448	 163	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,220	
Other	Current	Charges 178	 155	 193	 169	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 695	
Office	Supplies 14	 13	 13	 13	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 54	
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 175	

Total	General	&	Administrative 95,036$		 			 11,183$		 			 12,146$		 			 7,852$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 126,217$	 			

Month	to	Month

6



Bartram	Springs
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Month	to	Month

Operations	&	Maintenance

Amenity	Center	Expenditures
Utilities:
Electric 5,939$		 			 5,221$		 			 4,850$		 			 4,810$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 20,821$	 			
Water/Irrigation 1,444	 1,168	 1,157	 1,038	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 4,807	
Cable 943	 1,247	 1,030	 1,030	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 4,249	
Gas 85	 165	 21	 93	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 364	
Trash	Removal 881	 881	 881	 881	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 3,524	
Security:
Security	Monitoring 280	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 280	
Access	Cards -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Management	Contracts:
Facility	Management 16,263	 16,263	 16,263	 16,263	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 65,051	
Pool	Attendants -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Field	Management/Administration 7,318	 7,318	 7,318	 7,318	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 29,272	
Pool	Maintenance 2,580	 2,580	 2,580	 2,580	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 10,318	
Janitorial 1,691	 1,662	 1,663	 1,663	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 6,678	
Gym	Monitor 2,854	 2,855	 2,854	 2,854	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 11,417	
Facility	Maintenance 2,854	 9,804	 6,329	 6,329	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 25,317	
Pool	Chemicals 1,959	 1,959	 1,959	 2,070	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 7,948	
Mobile	Application 208	 208	 208	 208	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 833	
Repairs	and	Maintenance 17,250	 8,711	 11,357	 5,020	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 42,338	
Special	Events 7,952	 2,358	 1,329	 907	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 12,546	
Holiday	Decorations -	 5,068	 770	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 5,838	
Fitness	Center	Repairs/Supplies 18	 178	 992	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,188	
Office	Supplies 509	 339	 619	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,466	
ASCAP/BMI	Licenses

Subtotal	Amenity	Center	Expenditures 71,029$		 			 67,984$		 			 62,180$		 			 53,064$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 254,256$	 			

Grounds	Maintenance
Landscape	Maintenance 16,207$		 			 16,207$		 			 16,207$		 			 16,207$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 64,829$	 			
Landscape	Contingency 5,896	 7,648	 2,040	 1,475	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 17,058	
Atheletic	Field -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Lake	Maintenance 1,821	 1,842	 3,584	 1,842	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 9,089	
Fountain	Maintenance -	 -	 -	 299	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 299	
Grounds	Maintenance 100	 -	 134	 138	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 372	
Pump	Repairs -	 1,268	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,268	
Streetlight	Repairs 96	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 96	
Irrigation	Repairs 2,011	 947	 455	 430	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 3,844	
Miscellaneous -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Capital	Reserves	Contributions -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	

Subtotal	Grounds	Maintenance 26,131$		 			 27,913$		 			 22,420$		 			 20,392$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 96,855$	 			

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 97,160$		 			 95,897$		 			 84,600$		 			 73,455$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 351,111$	 			

Total	Expenditures 192,196$		 			 107,080$		 			 96,745$		 			 81,307$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 477,328$	 			

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (174,265)$		 			 134,704$		 			 1,143,167$									 (48,163)$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 1,055,444$									

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (174,265)$		 			 134,704$		 			 1,143,167$									 (48,163)$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 1,055,444$									

7



Bartram	Springs
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Optional	Redemption	Date None
Interest	Rate: 0.750%-2.520%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2036
Reserve	Fund	Definition 50%	of	Maximum	Annual	Debt	Service
Reserve	Fund	Requirement $616,079
Reserve	Fund	Balance $616,079
Excess	Funds	Revenue	Acct	11/2	 Any	lawful	Purpose

Bonds	Outstanding	-	6/1/21 $15,175,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22 ($955,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23 ($965,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $13,255,000

*	Reserve	Fund	Requirement	funded	by	Surety	Bond

Series	2021	Special	Assessment	Refunding	and	Revenue	Bonds



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



TOTAL	TAX	ROLL UNITS
2021-1	DEBT	
ASSESSED

2021-2	DEBT	
ASSESSED O&M	ASSESSED TOTAL		ASSESSED

NET	TAX	ROLL	ASSESSED 23,512 1,192,875.97									 39,277.22															 1,560,527.28											 2,792,680.47																

DUVAL	COUNTY		DISTRIBUTION
DATE	

RECEIVED
2021-1	DEBT	
RECEIVED

2021-2	DEBT	
RECEIVED O&M	RECEIVED TOTAL		RECEIVED

1 11/3/2023 8,674.64																			 285.63																						 11,348.21																		 20,308.48																							
2 11/14/2023 25,171.35																 828.80																						 32,929.30																		 58,929.45																							
3 11/21/2023 46,197.77																 1,521.13																		 60,436.20																		 108,155.10																				
4 11/28/2023 99,521.41																 3,276.89																		 130,194.49															 232,992.79																				
5 12/4/2023 783,033.44													 25,782.54															 1,024,368.90											 1,833,184.88																
6 12/6/2023 141,852.90													 4,670.72																		 185,572.78															 332,096.40																				
7 12/14/2023 17,472.73																 575.32																						 22,857.93																		 40,905.97																							
8 12/22/2024 5,220.21																			 171.88																						 6,829.11																					 12,221.20																							
9 1/9/2024 14,733.76																 485.13																						 19,274.79																		 34,493.68																							
10 1/22/2024 5,627.79																			 185.30																						 7,362.31																					 13,175.41																							
11 2/5/2024 8,535.95																			 281.06																						 11,166.79																		 19,983.80																							

-																																 -																															 -																																	 -																																						
TOTAL	COUNTY	DISTRIB. 											1,156,041.95	 																	38,064.41	 													1,512,340.82	 																		2,706,447.16	

TOTAL	TAX	ROLL	DUE	(DISCOUNTS	NOT	TAKEN) 																		36,834.02	 																				1,212.81	 																				48,186.46	 																									86,233.31	

96.91% 96.91% 96.91% 96.91%
	

Bartram	Springs

FISCAL	YEAR	2024	SUMMARY	OF	ASSESSMENT	RECEIPTS

TAX	ROLL

PERCENT	COLLECTED	TAX	ROLL

Community	Development	District

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Date check	#'s Amount

General	Fund	-	Hancock

01/05/24 2730-2757 $70,014.94
01/11/24 2703-2729 9,198.38	
01/26/24 2760-2777 67,782.02	

$146,995.34

General	Fund	-	Capital	Reserve

01/05/24 304-306 $21,014.00
01/26/24 307-309 36,932.25	

$57,946.25

Utilities	and	Autopayments

01/03/24 TECO $30.72
01/03/24 TECO 49.98	
01/04/24 Comcast 342.59	
01/04/24 Comcast 555.51	
01/08/24 JEA 5,848.73	
01/10/24 Comcast 131.45	
01/22/24 Rubicon 880.90	
01/23/24 Hancock	Whitney	Purchase	Cards 3,868.72	

$11,708.60

TOTAL $216,650.19

*Fedex	invoices	will	be	available	upon	request.

Bartram	Springs
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Fiscal	Year	2024

Check	Register

10



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  3/03/24          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024 ***       BARTRAM SPRINGS - GENERAL FUND

BANK B GENERAL FUND-HANCOCK

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/05/24 00503 12/18/23 210231   202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              345.50
REKEY SCHLAGE CYLINDERS

DEDGE'S LOCK & KEY SHOP INC                                       345.50 002730
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00513 11/01/23 312840   202311 330-57200-46000                                     *              149.00

2 COM TOILET FLUSH VALVES
BILL FENWICK                                                      149.00 002731

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00513 12/14/23 315321   202312 330-57200-46000                                     *            1,230.43

VET PARK BH TOILET LEAK
BILL FENWICK                                                    1,230.43 002732

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00465 11/02/23 4226     202311 330-57200-46000                                     *              198.00

RPLC & TEST CAMERA
INTEGRATED ACCESS SOLUTIONS,LLC                                   198.00 002733

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00465 3/21/23 2830     202303 330-57200-46000                                     *              132.00

CAMERAS OFFLINE SRVC CALL
INTEGRATED ACCESS SOLUTIONS,LLC                                   132.00 002734

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00135 12/28/23 23-08273 202312 310-51300-48000                                     *               79.63

NTC OF 12/28 MEETING
JACKSONVILLE DAILY RECORD C/O                                      79.63 002735

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00201 1/01/24 13129561 202401 320-57200-46500                                     *            2,070.09

JAN POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        2,070.09 002736

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00274 12/12/23 32343    202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              185.00

FIRE ANTS QURTLY SRVCS
QUICK CATCH                                                       185.00 002737

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00274 12/12/23 32344    202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              170.00

FIRE ANTS QURTLY SRVCS
QUICK CATCH                                                       170.00 002738

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00274 12/15/23 32385    202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              365.00

DEC SNAKE SERVICES
QUICK CATCH                                                       365.00 002739

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00091 11/25/23 80724085 202311 330-57200-46000                                     *              213.00

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
STAPLES                                                           213.00 002740

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00091 12/23/23 80727131 202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              445.61

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
STAPLES                                                           445.61 002741

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BSPR BART SPRING    BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  3/03/24          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024 ***       BARTRAM SPRINGS - GENERAL FUND

BANK B GENERAL FUND-HANCOCK

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/05/24 00065 10/23/23 43945304 202310 330-57200-46000                                     *              174.00
OCT PEST CONTROL

TERMINIX                                                          174.00 002742
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00040 12/01/23 142176B  202312 330-57200-46600                                     *            1,842.00

DEC WATER MGT-ZONE 1 & 2
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                            1,842.00 002743

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00040 12/13/23 1857678  202312 330-57200-46600                                     *            1,741.50

POND FISH RESTOCKING
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                            1,741.50 002744

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00388 11/29/23 13610    202311 330-57200-46250                                     *              345.00

CUT 5 PINE TREE SPORT FLD
VERDEGO LLC                                                       345.00 002745

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00388 11/30/23 13834    202311 330-57200-46400                                     *              947.44

MAINLINE AMENITY CENTER
VERDEGO LLC                                                       947.44 002746

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00388 12/01/23 13704    202312 330-57200-46200                                     *           16,207.26

DEC LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
VERDEGO LLC                                                    16,207.26 002747

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00388 12/06/23 13842    202312 330-57200-46400                                     *              455.00

IRR PROPOSAL CHECK VALVE
VERDEGO LLC                                                       455.00 002748

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00388 12/21/23 13974    202312 330-57200-46250                                     *              380.17

RPLC SHRUB W/HOLLY PLANTS
VERDEGO LLC                                                       380.17 002749

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00388 12/21/23 13975    202312 330-57200-46250                                     *              387.54

POOL AREA-LIRIOPE W/MULCH
VERDEGO LLC                                                       387.54 002750

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00388 12/21/23 13976    202312 330-57200-46250                                     *              861.03

POOL AREA FILL IN
VERDEGO LLC                                                       861.03 002751

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00351 11/30/23 415589   202311 330-57200-46000                                     *            1,446.00

PRESS WASH VETERANS PARK
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                   1,446.00 002752

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00351 11/30/23 415690   202311 330-57200-46000                                     *               96.75

POOL CHEMICALS

BSPR BART SPRING    BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  3/03/24          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024 ***       BARTRAM SPRINGS - GENERAL FUND

BANK B GENERAL FUND-HANCOCK

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/30/23 415690   202311 330-57200-46000                                     *              523.60
POOL CHEMICALS

11/30/23 415690   202311 330-57200-46000                                     *               91.81
POOL CHEMICALS

11/30/23 415690   202311 330-57200-46000                                     *              448.37
HD-CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS

VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                   1,160.53 002753
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00351 12/01/23 415270   202312 320-57200-33000                                     *           16,262.83

MANAGER AND ATTENDANTS
12/01/23 415270   202312 320-57200-46400                                     *            2,579.58

POOL MAINT SRVCS
12/01/23 415270   202312 320-57200-34100                                     *            6,329.17

GENERAL FAC MAINT SRVCS
12/01/23 415270   202312 320-57200-43500                                     *            1,662.50

JANITORIAL SRVCS
12/01/23 415270   202312 320-57200-34510                                     *            2,854.33

GYM MONITORING SRVCS
12/01/23 415270   202312 320-57200-34000                                     *            7,318.09

FIELD OPERATION SRVCS
12/01/23 415270   202312 320-57200-34530                                     *              208.33

MOBILE APP
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                  37,214.83 002754

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00429 12/11/23 S99093   202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              312.38

WATER LEAK SERVING AREA
WEATHER ENGINEERS, INC.                                           312.38 002755

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00482 12/07/23 91301948 202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              728.00

RESET & UNIT INSPECTION
WW GAY MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR,INC                                  728.00 002756

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00469 12/06/23 2362     202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              229.00

4 THANKSGIVING BANNERS
10K CREATIVE                                                      229.00 002757

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/11/24 00514 1/10/24 347      202401 330-57200-46000                                     *            3,684.75

PAVER SEAL RPR PROJ DEP
KENNETH T. RASNICK DBA FIRST COAST                              3,684.75 002758

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/11/24 00071 1/01/24 571      202401 310-51300-35100                                     *              135.42

JAN INFO TECH
1/01/24 571      202401 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,975.58

JAN MANAGEMENT FEES
1/01/24 571      202401 310-51300-35200                                     *              106.00

JAN WEBSITE ADMIN

BSPR BART SPRING    BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  3/03/24          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024 ***       BARTRAM SPRINGS - GENERAL FUND

BANK B GENERAL FUND-HANCOCK

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

1/01/24 571      202401 310-51300-51000                                     *               13.46
OFFICE SUPPLIES

1/01/24 571      202401 310-51300-42000                                     *               72.22
POSTAGE

1/01/24 571      202401 310-51300-42500                                     *              193.50
COPIES

1/01/24 571      202401 310-51300-41000                                     *               17.45
TELEPHONE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,513.63 002759
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00369 12/26/23 231216   202312 330-57200-46000                                     *            3,473.00

125AMP POOL PUMP BREAKER
BEACON ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS, INC.                             3,473.00 002760

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00373 1/12/24 958017ES 202312 320-57200-43300                                     *                8.59

DEC INSIDE FERC FGT Z3
FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                 8.59 002761

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00373 1/12/24 958018ES 202312 320-57200-43300                                     *               12.48

DEC INSIDE FERC FGT Z3
FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                12.48 002762

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00507 1/16/24 SPI-5819 202401 310-51300-31100                                     *              930.00

ENGINEERING INSPECTION
FORTRESS ENGINEERING GROUP LLC                                    930.00 002763

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00367 1/09/24 0039302  202401 320-57200-49300                                     *              870.00

CT 1000 EASTER EGGS
GIFTS GALORE LLLP                                                 870.00 002764

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00135 1/04/24 24-00108 202401 310-51300-48000                                     *               79.63

NTC OF MEETING 1/4
JACKSONVILLE DAILY RECORD C/O                                      79.63 002765

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00471 1/08/24 3338672  202311 310-51300-31500                                     *            3,969.50

NOV GENERAL COUNSEL
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  3,969.50 002766

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00274 1/15/24 32673    202401 330-57200-46000                                     *              365.00

JAN SNAKE SERVICES
QUICK CATCH                                                       365.00 002767

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00515 1/12/24 1831     202401 330-57200-46000                                     *              140.00

RPLC UNIT BELT
RIVER CITY MECHANICAL SERVICES LLC                                140.00 002768

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BSPR BART SPRING    BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  3/03/24          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024 ***       BARTRAM SPRINGS - GENERAL FUND

BANK B GENERAL FUND-HANCOCK

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/26/24 00040 1/01/24 149235B  202401 330-57200-46600                                     *            1,842.00
JAN WATER MGT-ZONE 1&2

THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                            1,842.00 002769
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00040 1/01/24 149236B  202401 330-57200-46900                                     *              299.00

QTRLY FOUNTAIN SERVICE
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                              299.00 002770

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00388 1/02/24 14142    202401 330-57200-46200                                     *           16,207.26

JAN LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
VERDEGO LLC                                                    16,207.26 002771

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00388 1/15/24 14233    202401 330-57200-46250                                     *            1,475.00

POOL AREA - MULCH BED
VERDEGO LLC                                                     1,475.00 002772

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00351 1/01/24 415969   202401 320-57200-33000                                     *           16,262.83

MANAGER & ATTENDANTS
1/01/24 415969   202401 320-57200-46400                                     *            2,579.58

POOL MAINT SRVCS
1/01/24 415969   202401 320-57200-34100                                     *            6,329.17

GEN FAC MAINT SRVCS
1/01/24 415969   202401 320-57200-43500                                     *            1,662.50

JANITORIAL SRVCS
1/01/24 415969   202401 320-57200-34510                                     *            2,854.33

GYM MONITORING SRVCS
1/01/24 415969   202401 320-57200-34000                                     *            7,318.09

FIELD OPERATION SRVCS
1/01/24 415969   202401 320-57200-34530                                     *              208.33

MOBILE APP
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                  37,214.83 002773

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00351 12/07/23 415855   202312 330-57200-46000                                     *              195.00

ASSISTANT RMV MED BOLLARD
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                     195.00 002774

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00351 12/31/23 416319   202312 320-57200-49300                                     *              555.66

SANTA EVENT/KID ACT NIGHT
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                     555.66 002775

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00351 12/31/23 416473   202312 330-57200-46000                                     *               63.77

W. WHEELER-HP-KEYS
12/31/23 416473   202312 330-57200-46000                                     *               56.37

S. LEAR-HP-FACILITY KEYS
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                     120.14 002776

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BSPR BART SPRING    BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  3/03/24          PAGE   6
*** CHECK DATES 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024 ***       BARTRAM SPRINGS - GENERAL FUND

BANK B GENERAL FUND-HANCOCK

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/26/24 00373 12/12/23 942089ES 202311 320-57200-43300                                     *               24.93
NOV INSIDE FERC FGT Z3

FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                24.93 002777
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                146,995.34

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              146,995.34

BSPR BART SPRING    BPEREGRINO

































































































































































AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  3/03/24          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024 ***       BARTRAM SPRINGS - CAP RESERVE

BANK B BSCDD-CAP RESERVE

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/05/24 00110 11/13/23 23657    202311 600-53800-61000                                     *            3,547.00
LIGHTING REPAIRS

DOBSON ELECTRIC, INC.                                           3,547.00 000304
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00120 12/13/23 17941362 202312 600-53800-61000                                     *            8,077.00

GYM AC COILS REPAIRS
DONOVAN ACQUISITION LLC DBA DONOVAN                             8,077.00 000305

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/05/24 00121 12/11/23 2189     202312 600-53800-60000                                     *            9,390.00

50% DEP TRI SHADE SAIL
SHADE AMERICA INC                                               9,390.00 000306

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00110 1/03/24 24007    202401 600-53800-61000                                     *           10,278.00

RPR BOLLARDS
DOBSON ELECTRIC, INC.                                          10,278.00 000307

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00514 1/10/24 347A     202401 600-53800-61000                                     *           11,054.25

PAVER SEAL RPR PROJ FINAL
KENNETH T. RASNICK DBA FIRST COAST                             11,054.25 000308

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/26/24 00122 1/16/24 497-1    202401 600-53800-61000                                     *           15,600.00

DEP PANEL/DURALAST SYSTEM
NK ROOFING CORPORATION DBA MIGHTY                              15,600.00 000309

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                 57,946.25

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               57,946.25

BSPR BART SPRING    BPEREGRINO






















	Agenda
	III.       Approval of Minutes of the February 7, 2024 Meeting 
	VII.            A.                                                              VerdeGo Agreement for Landscape Maintenance Services 
	VIII. A.        Champion Swim School 
	B.                                                              Barracudas Swim Team 
	C.        Matthews Design for Engineering Services 
	IX.       Consideration of Resolution 2024-04, Designation of Officers 
	X. D. 1.   Vesta Report (outgoing)
	2.         GMS Report (incoming) 
	XII. A.  Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2024 and Statement of Revenue & Expenditures for the Period Ending January 31, 2024
	B.        Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	C.        Approval of Check Register 



